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PakLibya

Chairman’s review

I am pleased to present the annual financial statements of Pak-Libya Holding Company (Private) Limited
for the year ended 31 December 2021,

Since the emergence of novel corona virus. (COVID-19) towards the end of 2019 internationally, the
challenges continue for the. entive world; no one remained unaffected due to this disease and related
measures to contain the pandemic, The economies are still facing supply chain issues, exponential freight
charges and delayed deliveties.

In Pakistan, overall economic scenario started to give mixed sigrals after the sudden change in interest

Tate 'scenario, uncontrolled inflation and negative behaviour of capital and money markets; macro-level

indicators of the economy and changin igrglobal lat1d§cape proved tough for the business environment.

additional equnty o resolve long outstemdmg matter of statutcny unp{tal reqmraments The management of
the Company, carefully re-adjusted its position and aligned with the economic and market situations. The
year proved good for the Company as it managed to demonstiate its commitment and resilience while
accepting any challenge that came in its way. Resultantly, the Company managed to generate profit
before tax of PKR 42.4 million even after taking provision on non-banking assets despite signing a
restructuring deal in year 2020 and impairment on equity securities, It has, however, been important for
the Board to consider the position of the Company in the markets in which it operates and to ensure that
outcome of potential future challenges would be materialised in the manner in which the Board wants
them to be transpired.

The Company has been regularly revisiting its busmess pracesses: and contmuously evalving regulatory
environment and aduptmg necassmy changes in a cost effective manner to ensure compliance with
statutory requirements together with attainment of its objectives espemally long-term sustainable-growth,

Honce, the Board will keep ifs work and performance ynder regular review and will revisit the

governance principles to ensure best practices.

I firmly beljeve that the Cornpany, management and staff will face all challenges with positivity to
achieve Company’s ultimate objective of creating long-term valie for owr clients, shareholders,
employees and other .sta]cehalders.

I have no doubt that given the continnous dcd:gatlon aud team_ spirit of our employees as well as the
continuous support of our shareholders, Pak Libya shall prosper in the years ahead.

Aclmowledgements

I would like to express my'sincere. gratitude to all the stakeholders for the confidence tliey continue to
repose in the Company, I also want to express my sincere appreclatlon to the shareholders; LAFICO,
MoF and SBP, for their continued support,

—Sd/—

Chairman
10" March 2022
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Directors’ Report

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are pleased to present the Directors’ Report of Pak Libya
Holding Company (Private) Limited (“Pak-Libya”) along with annual audited financial statements
and the auditor’s report thereon for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Economic Overview

The challenges continued from prior year due to pandemic, global conflicts along with related
repercussions, however, things were crawling towards normalcy. Economic activities resumed
gradually due to favourable business environment well supported by low interest rate regime and
incentive schemes like TERIF and Wages & Salaries together with profuse wheat and cotton crops that
gave the economy much need encouragement. Resultantly, the GDP reached to an impressive 3.9%
for fiscal year end June 2021,

The Country’s economy gained momentum in the second half of year 2021 with increase in local
demand in large scale manufacturing, autos and POL products. Exports and remittances have also
shown improvement while this recovery also faced challenges like continuous increase in oil &
energy prices, supply chain issues, commodity supercycle prices as well as continuously increasing
inflation, Inflation kept creeping up during the year and was CPI was clocked at 12.3% in December
2021,

Protracted negotiations with IMF and delay in conclusion of an agreement with stiff prior actions also
unnerved the markets resulting in weakening of Pak Rupees against US Dollar and nervousness in the
stock market. Recently concluded IMF agreement along with disbursement of first tranche is positive,
allowing for more multilateral inflows that should address the balance of payment issue. However,
the stock market remained subdued and range bound, posting a mere 1.9% return for the year. It
oscillated between a low of KSE-100 index 42,780 in March to a peak of 48,726 in June. Despite
record profitability by many listed companies market succumbed to selling pressure. The market kept
looking for triggers but failed to gain momentum on account of multi-pronged factors such as interest
rates rise, inflation, current account deficit and related pressure on Rupee/Dollar parity.

Political uncertainties, current account deficit and rising inflation resulting in possibility of further
abrupt rise in interest rates are the main challenges being faced by the economy in the current year,

Corporate Performance

The world economies, including Pakistan, have been facing unsettling fear of continuous waves of
COVID-19 and its impacts on international and domestic markets. The energy prices, interest rates
and inflation are on the increasing trajectory thus, challenging the sustainability of economic
achievements.

The quality of asset mix remained dominant with investments in debt securities due to interest rate
scenario together with gradual build-up of loan & advances portfolios. The Capital market remained
volatile due to pandemic and political developments. However, the increase in policy rates toward the
4™ quarter gave a disconcerting signal to money, stock or foreign exchange markets. The US$ has
seen its all-time high exchange price whilst the energy prices are continuously rising.
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Consequently, the margins of the Company also seen decline, compared to last year, due (o the
business model of the DFIs i.e. unavailability of non-remunerative funds. The gross mark-up income
during the year was PKR 2.958 billion compared to PKR 3.209 billion in last year.

However, the current year profitability was badly impacted due to creation of provision on Power
Plant assets despite continuous negotiations on power purchase agreement.

The main focus was to somehow make use of KEL project work either by deploying those assets into
economic use or exit via an outright sale. The management of the Company after critically evaluating
its options finalised the terms of restructuring deal for the disposal of KEL assets (non-banking
assets) with a specialised engineering firm,

In March 2020, Pak-Libya signed the term sheet with its business partner and after finalising legal
documentation both the parties signed relevant agreements on 30™ June 2020. Under the arrangement,
both business partners agreed to enter into a business venture whereby the assets of KEL would be
used for setting up of captive power plants to be used for industrial units through power purchase
agreements on 'Build Own Operate' or 'Build Own Operate Transfer' basis against total consideration
of PKR 1.2 billion (and dividend) which will be paid from the power plant cash flows. In this regard,
Pak-Libya has disposed of its major shareholding in its wholly owned subsidiary Kamoke Powergen
(Pvt) Limited (IKPL) and transferred 80% of its shares together with management control of KPL to
its business partner, The relevant formalities in terms of change of management have been completed
in December 2020.

However, due to continuous waves of COVID-19 variants, significant increase in inflation,
devaluation of Pak rupee and volatility in interest rate, the 1™ power purchase agreement (PPA) with
identified buyer has not been signed yet.

Consequent to the delays faced by the business partner (engineering firm) in signing the 1* PPA with
the potential power purchase buyer, SBP has already enforced PLHC to creale certain provision
against these assets despite the fact that revised market/assessed as well as forced sales values based
on the report of valuation expert, exceeded their carrying values. Therefore, the Company has taken a
hit of PKR 364.72 million in year 2021. The management of the Company, is doing its utmost efforts
to realise its stuck-up amount in the most efficient way.

Resultantly, the Company generated profit before tax of PKR 42.46 million as compared to 459.97
million.

Each of our business segments contributed to support the management’s business stralegy despite
challenging business environment vis-a-vis operational limitation and pandemic.

The asset base of the Company has increased by 9.75% reflecting growth in Lending to Fls, Debt
Investment and Credit portfolios compared to FY2020. On the assets side, management aims Lo
double the tolal asset in 5 years having focus on sustainable growth in Loans & Advances being the
main driver of growth.

The borrowings have also increased by 12.88%, with noticeable continuous increase in deposits
which increased by 13.19% in line with strategy. The continued focus is to have stable funding
resources including individual deposit mobilisation activity. The objective is to reduce the reliance on
repo borrowing and have a leverage ratio ranging between six to len times.

During the year, the Company has increased its paid up capital against the equity received in tranches
from shareholders. Furthermore, the Company has also received the remaining final tranche of PKR
135 million from GoP while Libyan shareholder had already injected the entire equity. Consequently,
the paid up capital of the Company has increased from PKR 7.871 billion to PKR 8.141 billion.
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The Company’s capital free of loss after issuance of remaining shares stood at PKR 6.04 1 billion.
Corporate & Investment Banking (CIB) and SME & Retail Banking (SME-RB)

Considering the core activity of the Company, significant efforts are being made to increase the credit
portfolio. The loan & advances portfolio (net of recoveries and provisions) has increased from PKR
5.674 billion last year to PKR 6.312 billion. However, despite economic disruption due to pandemic,
overall the debt portfolio has been maintained. The overall performing portfolio yielding a return of
8.62% (8.76% including debt investments).

The management exercised extra caution in selecting clients, for CIB and SME-RB, through stringent
risk assessment and pressed hard on rigorous post disbursement monitoring. Recently, the
management has reorganised front office business teams, split the portfolio and renamed CIB as
Investment Banking, Syndication & Advisory (IBSA) and SME&RB as Corporate, Commercial &
SME (CC&SME). Consequently, capital free of losses has been reallocated to all business
departments accordingly.

Treasury & Fund Management (TFM)

TFM carefully selected instruments and managed to build a portfolio yielding positive spread and
contributed significantly in current year’s profitability of the Company. However, considering huge
volatility in interest rate curve together with increase in frequency of MPC meeting, it has become a
speculative matter showing negative market sentiments and uncertain future outlook.

TFM, in addition to mobilising resources at competitive rates for business units continued to
supplement our core business income through secondary market investments and selected investments
in debt instruments. During the year, TFM earned net interest income of PKR 408.20 million while
didn’t realise any capital gain on its investment portfolios due to interest rate scenario.

Securities Portfolio Management (SPM)

Economic and political uncertainty, at domestic and international levels, showing no signs of stable
capital market; low trading volumes and current weighted average cost of equity securities portfolio
had already impacted the profitability due to impairment and fewer apportunities for capital gains.

During the year, SPM increased its dividend income on the equity securities portfolio. The
management has been continuously reviewing its equity AFS portfolio and making efforts to make
the portfolio diversified and dynamic. The additional impairment charged at yearend was of PKR
95.69 million whilst PKR 27.06 million has reversed, during the year, due to disposal of related
shares.

Our SPM department on the basis of our overall risk appetite and resources available posted returns
of around 3.01% despite restricted prudential limits due to minimum capital requirement (MCR)
shortfall,

Back Offices Support (Risk Control Functions)

The Risk Control Functions have performed their role diligently and ensured smooth operations of the
Company with limited resources and lean staff structure during COVID-19 restrictions as well as
overall during the entire year. The cross functional teams provided end-to-end support to conclude the
activities. The challenge was unique therefore non-traditional solutions were devised specially worlk
from home experience was completely new, and successful, to cater the once in a life time scenario.
The coordinated efforts achieved business objectives while mitigated operational risks, continuity of
business activities under an efficient business continuity plan,
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A brief summary of the financial results and financial position is as follows:

2021 2020
PKR in thousands
Year-end balances:

Total assets 40,621,202 37,010,462
Total liabilities 35,046,344 31,047,397
Net assets 5,574,858 5,963,065

Shareholders’ equity (net):

Share capital 8,141,780 7,871,780
Reserves 380,654 372,477
(Deficit)/Surplus on revaluation of assets (847,361) (281,624)
—net of tax

Accumulated loss (2,100,215) (2,134,569)
Advance against shares subscription - 135,000
Total 5,574,858 5,963,065
For the year:

Profit/(Loss) before taxation 42,467 459,973
Profit/(Loss) after taxation 40,883 304,138
Earnings/(Loss) per share — PKR 50.63 443.23

The Company had transferred an amount equal to 20% of profit after taxation to statutory reserves as
per the applicable legal requirements.

In view of the minimum capital requirement (MCR), at yearend, no amount could be considered for
distribution of dividends (bonus or cash) to the shareholders. We are, however, confident that since
the MCR requirement is completed, the Company will earn sufficient profits to enable dividend
distributions to its shareholders.

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA) maintained its credit ratings from the previous year for
Pak Libya in the year 2021, however, as a result of persistent efforts and commitment to focus on
core issues, the future outlook of the Company has been assigned as ‘Stable’:

Short term Al+
Long term AA-

These ratings denote a low expectation of credit risk emanating from a very strong capacity for timely
payment of financial commitments.

Statement on Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

e The financial statements prepared by the management, present fairly its state of affairs, the result
of its operations, cash flows, and changes in equity.
Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained.
Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgement. Further,
changes in the accounting policies are duly disclosed in the financial statements.
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e International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan for DFIs, have been
followed in the preparation of financial statements.

s  There are no doubts regarding the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

e Tax contingencies have been disclosed in the financial statements.

s There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance.

e The system of internal controls including internal controls over financial reporting is sound in
design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

e  Summary of key operational and financial data for the last six years is enclosed.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company has always remained active in fulfilling its social responsibility and will continue its
efforts on this front in future as well. However, currently, we were unable to support certain notable,
reputed charitable institution due to the minimum capital requirement and related SBP prudential
regulations.

Green Banking Initiative

The Company has adopted a Green Banking policy wherein Pak-Libya aims to obtain relevant
documents, for loaning to new projects, that have been specified in the Environment Protection Act
whilst for existing loans, management will evaluate adherence to the Environment Quality Standards
established by the environment agencies. In an event, where the borrower is not compliant to any of
the set standards, the Company will encourage and assist them in coming up with better environment
protection measures.

The management has nominated a Green Banking Officer and is in the process of establishing a
Green Banking Office to collect and consolidate data/information on green banking activities and
initiatives for its onward reporting to the senior management/Board and SBP, as and when such
data/information is sought.

Consumer Grievances Handling Meehanism

The Company is committed to providing its customers quality services and highest level of
satisfaction therefore has adopted a formal policy and established process to deal with consumer
grievances. The management through complaint handling mechanism, ensures that complaints are
resolved in a timely manner and recurrence of complaints is prevented where possible,

All complaints get handled through Centralised Complaint Management System under the
supervision of Head of HRA and SVP (RMRC).

Board Composition
During the year, no vacancy existed on the Board.
Performance Evaluation of the Board

The Company engages Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG), a specialised institute, for
the performance evaluation of the Board members. The external evaluator gives an independent view
and perspective about overall performance of Board. The Chairman of the Board communicates the
results internally to all board members.

Risk Management Framework

The Risk Management Structure of the Company is overseen by the Board’s Risk Management
Committee (BRMC) which has further entrusted the task to the Management’s Risk Management
Committee (MRMC) to carry out the assessment and supervision/monitoring of all types of risks, the
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Company is exposed to and work on a strategy and action plan to mitigate the risks on the basis of
Company's overall risk appetite.

The Credit Policy and Credit Manuals for the Company are updated and maodified based on changing
risk and regulatory environment and are being implemented for a better and comprehensive
evaluation, on a continuous basis, of credit exposure that each client brings in. The Obligor Risk
Rating model and Facility Risk Rating model emphasising upon internal ratings model covering
objective aspects are used for respective evaluation of risks. Consequently, the risk appetite has been
further elaborated to include specific limits. Furthermore, the monitoring and reporting mechanism
has also been strengthened with an aim to improve the overall credit risk management process.

We believe that a sound and effective Operational Risk Function is critical for uninterrupted
workflow of operations round the year. Thus, staying watchful of any contingency that may arise and
to ensure continuity of our business operations a BCP site is being maintained. Moreover, an
operational risk database is being regularly maintained to comply with the regulatory requirement as
well as to keep a regular check on the incidents that need to be addressed on a prompt basis and also
to evaluate the effective [unctioning of the operational risk mechanism.

We also have in place a Company-wide documented business continuity plan at each business unit
with a view to manage risk emanating from operational activities. During the year, we continued to
strengthen our Internal Controls and hence brought about various improvements in our integrated IT
system keeping in view the best practices and to cater our reporting requirements. Furthermore, our
Compliance, Risk Management and overall Internal Control structure remained robust and the
implementation of SBP guidelines and framewark on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
(ICTFR) remained steadfast.

The market risk function continues to monitor market related risks. Stress Testing analyses are used
to assess impact of key potential risks on existing exposures. The marlket risk policy with elaborated
interest rate risk is in place. Also, the guidelines on monitoring and reporting of interest rate risks
have been enhanced in the overall market risk management framework.

The Company also has a Liquidity Risk Management Policy, in addition to the Liquidity
Management TPolicy, in place. The Liquidity Risk Management Manual includes detailed and
comprehensive processes to manage various liquidity aspects and Contingency Funding Plan.

The Company continues to maintain its CAR well above prescribed regulatory thresholds throughout
the year based on applicable Basel 11 and Basel III requirements., Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process (ICAAP) framework has been reviewed in view of the guidelines issued by SBP
and implemented to make the process more robust and effective. Moreover, efforts are underway to
comply with regulatory Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) of PKR 6 billion. The MoF and
LAFICO (both the shareholders) have injected additional equity to increase the loss absorption
capacity, smooth operations and long-term sustainable growth of the Company. In this regard, the
authorised capital of the Company has increased to PKKR 10 billion.

Growth in the Company’s portfolio is being managed effectively to avoid risk concentration through
established limits in every important/relevant area. Amendments in the limits had/have been duly
made in line with revision in the Prudential Regulations, if any. The Company aims al business
growth by assuming direct exposure or through risk participation. Risk Management function
proactively contributes for taking exposure within the defined risk parameters.

The Company continued to strengthen compliance program during the year with appropriate
KYC/AML. controls in place and ensuring regulatory compliance and awareness through the forum of
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Compliance Committee of the Management. All policies, procedures and products are reviewed from
compliance perspective along with maintaining relationship with regulatory authorities. The
Company’s overall Risk Management Framework is robust. The Company continues to put in efforts
to further improve and strengthen the risk management and internal control framework.

Statement on Internal Controls

A sound system of internal controls is in place to achieve organisational objectives and continuous
improvement is made therein in light of the changing requirements of the business and operating
environment. Management has evaluated the internal controls, including internal controls over
financial reporting as effective and the Board endorses the same evaluation. The State Bank of
Pakistan, in view of the strengthened control environment has granted exemption to the Company
from annual submission of external auditor’s long form report on internal control over financial
reporting (ICFR).

Comments of Auditors in their Audit Report

The external auditors have expressed a qualified opinion on the investment in Summit Banks’
(counter party) TFC’s amounting to PKR 398.58 million, as referred in note 8.2.6 to the
accompanying financial statements as they were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to determine the recoverability of these TFCs.

Furthermore, they have added emphasis of matter paragraph in their audit report while referred note
13 & 42.2 to the accompanying financial statements relating to the Company’s plan and actions for
disposal of asset relating to Kamoki Energy Limited (KEL). The opinion of auditors is not qualified
in respect of this matter.

Comments of Auditors in their Review Report on Best Practices of Corporate Governance

Auditors have not highlighted any material non-compliance in their review report on Company’s
Statement of Best Practices of Corporate Governance,

Statement of Investment of Provident and Gratuity Funds

The values of investments (excluding cash at bank) of provident fund and gratuity fund as at 31
December 2020 were PKR 122.49 million and PKR 141.22 million respectively based on the audited
accounts of these funds.

Details of Board Meetings and Board Sub-committee meetings attendances and their
memberships

During the year, five meetings of the Board of Directors were held and attended by directors as
follows:

 Meetings
| held during Meetings

{Name of Director Designation directorship | attended
‘Mr. Bashir B. Omer Chairman | 5 ' 5
Dr. Muhammad Tahir Noor Director : 5 ' 5
‘Mr. Abrar Ahmed Mirza Director 5 5
'Mr. Abdulfatah Ashour Ali Ejayedi | Director 5 5
‘Mr, Khurram Hussain Managing Director 3 5
Mr. Khaled Joma Ezarzor - Deputy Managing Director 5 5
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Details of Audit Committee Meetings

During the year, four meetings of the audit committee were held and attended by member(s) as
follows:

Meetings |
| held during | Meetings
Name of Director Designation directorship = attended
Dr, Muhammad Tahir Noor Chairman 4 4
Mr. Abrar Ahmed Mirza Member 4 4
Mr, Abdulfatah Ashour Ali Ejayedi Member 4 4

Details of Risk Management Committee Meetings

During the year, two meetings of the risk management committee were held and attended by
member(s) as follows:

Meetings
held during Meetings
{Name of Director Designation directorship attended
|Mr, Abrar Ahmed Mirza Chairman 2 2
Mr. Abdulfatah Ashour Ali Ejayedi Member | 2 2
Mr. Khaled Joma Ezarzor Member 2 2

Details of Human Resource Management Committee Meetings

During the year, no human resource management committee meeting was held.

Meetings
held during Meetings
Name of Director Designation directorship attended
Mr. Bashir B. Omer Chairman - -
Dr. Muhammad Tahir Noor Member - -
Mr. Abdulfatah Ashour Ali Ejayedi Member - -
Details of Credit/Investment Committee Meeting of the Board
During the year, no credit/investment committee meeting was held.
Meetings
held during =~ Meetings
Name of Director Designation directorship attended
Mr. Bashir B. Omer Chairman - -
Mr. Abrar Ahmed Mirza Member - -
Mr, Khurram Hussain Member - -

Page 8 of 10



Auditors

The present auditors, M/s Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants (A member firm of
Grant Thornton International Ltd) have retired and completed five consecutive audit periods. The
Audit Committee has recommended the appointment of new auditors for the year ending 31
December 2022 which has been endorsed by the Board of Directors.

Pattern of Shareholding

' Shareholding |
‘Shareholders E (%a) ?
‘Government of Pakistan through Ministry of Finance/State Bank of Pakistan 50
‘Government/State of Libya through Libyan Foreign Investment Company (LAFICO) 50
{Total | 100

Company Outlook

The economic disruption resulting from the ongoing pandemic caused great uncertainties for
businesses around the Country. The situation caused significant delays in finalisation and signing of
the power purchase agreement; therefore, the Company has to create a provision of PKR 364.7
million therefore significant portion of entire year profitability has been expensed out. Despite such
circumstances, the Company has shown great resilience by achieving its certain strategic objectives.

However, the management is still working on the non-banking assets considering the most efficient
ways to recover stuck-up funds in a timely manner. The disposal of Power Plant (non-banking assets),
deposit mobilisation as stable funding source and determination to increase the advances portfolio,
being the core activity, we understand and believe that the Company will be able to achieve its target
of sustainable profitability and long term growth.

In terms of recoverability of investment in TFCs amounting to PKR 398.58 million, the management
has evaluated overall situation vis-a-vis issuer Bank’s intention and ability to pay; accordingly,
concluded that both the elements exist as it acknowledges the debt and there are no restrictions on its
operations while the payment is delayed due to its minimum capital requirements. In this regard, SBP
has given its final approval for the period till 27 October 2021 however the issuer Bank has requested
a separate in-principal approval (similar to prior year) for the period covering till 27 October 2022.
Therefore, management has not provided any impairment on the said TFCs on subjective basis due to
the recent developments & negotiations, and has been following up for the amicable resolution of the
matter and complete recovery.

The Company, being a DFI, has a specific business model, therefore, business aspects and
commercial sense cannot be ignored. The Company managed to generate sufficient profits which
enabled the Company to absorbed around PKR 460 million provisions on its non-banking assets and
AFS equity securities portfolio yet keeping its MCR complaint status intact. We believe that further
impairment and then its reversal or even agreeing with further adjustment on above-mentioned items
would imply lack of business understanding. However, existing and evolving regulatory requirements
governing capital, leverage, and liquidity, together with the steps we have taken/need to take to adapt
to them, have been critical for the Company in terms of its long-term sustainable growth and to create
a safer and more resilient financial system overall.

The management is focusing on all possible avenues for profitable operations of the Company
including recovery efforts for troubled and non-performing assets which are a source of potential
earnings. Moreover, new long-term credit lines are being negotiated to fill in the liquidity gaps and to
ensure contingency funding planning, Therefore, the Company has been regularly reviewing its assets
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and liabilities mix together with available resources, and has taken various measures to tighten the
controls over operating cost to ensure favourable impact on profitability and compliance with
statutory requirements together with attainment of long-term sustainable growth.

In view of the efforts being made by the management we are optimistic about our Company’s future
growth, profitability and sustainability.
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Summary of key operational and financial data for last six years

PKR in millions FY2021 | FY2020 | FY2019 | FY2018 | FY2017 | FY2016
Gross Approvals*® 5,784 4,401 2,357 2,313 2,427 1,613
Disbursements 2,757 2,500 1,767 2,540 1,799 986
Investments - net 2,929 5,907 7,188 2,132 - 2,891
Recoveries - Principal 2,506 1,031 1,598 2,151 1,001 1,190
Redemption - Investments 616 698 672 259 295 540
Gross Income 2,988 3,713 1,954 1,507 1,335 1,298
Net interest income 606 713 77 260 265 313
Net profit/(loss) before tax 42 460 277 (261) 84 1,032
Taxation - net 2 156 27 62 36 241
Net profit/(loss) after tax 41 304 (304) (323) 48 791
Shareholders' Equity - net 5,575 5,963 5,254 4,168 4,555 4,761
Total assets 40,621 37,010 | 29,089 | 20,428 19,163 18,895
Staff strength (number)** 98 104 103 106 111 106

* TInclude rollover
** Including outsourced staff

Nole: Figures of respective years include impacts of restatements (as applicable)
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Grant Thornton Anjum

Rahman

Ist & 3rd Floor,
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Modern Motors House,
TO THE MEMBERS OF PAK LIBYA Beaurnont Road,
HOLDING COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED Karcchi, Pakistan.
Repott on the audit of the financial statements T +922135472961-64

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Pak Libya Holding Company (Private)
Limited (the Company), which comptise the statement of financial position as at Decembet
31, 2021, and the profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes
of the audit.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report, the statement of financial position, the profit and loss account, the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and repotting
standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, pive the information required by the Banking
Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XTX of 2017), in the mannet so
tequired and tespectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at
December 31, 2021 and of the profit and loss, the comprehensive income, the changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As digclosed in (refer note 8.2.6) (TFC) amounting to Rs. 398.58 million (2020: Rs, 398.58
million) comprising 79,955 units. The repayment of principal and interest on these TFCs are
outstanding since 2018. On the basis of limited information available, we were unable to obrain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to determine the recoverability of these TFCs, There are
no other sufficient alternative andit procedures that we could adopt to determine whether any
allowance for non-recovery of the amount should be made in these financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2021. Adjustment to the figures described above might have
consequential effects on the Company’s profits for the year ended December 31, 2021 and the
financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2021, disclosures presented in note 46
to the financial statements related to minimum capital requirement.

Charlered Accountanis gra ntthﬂrnton.pl(
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Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following matter:

Refer note 13.1 & 42.2 to the accompanying financial statements relating to the company’s plan
and actions for disposal of asset relating to Kamoki Energy Limited (KEL).

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities undet those standatds are futther described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities fot the audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
ate independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Tthics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accotdance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for out qualified opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Repott Thereon

Management is fesponsible for the other information. The other information comptises the
infotmation included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and
out auditor’s teport theteon.

Out opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whethet the other information is matetially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appeats to
be matetrially misstated, If, based on the work we have petformed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement in the other information; we are tequired to report that fact. We have
nothing to repott in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accotdance with accounting and repotting standards as applicable in Pakistan, the
tequirements of Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017) and for such internal control as management detetmines is necessaty to enable the
prepatation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or etrot,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to contihue as a going concetn, disclosing, as applicable, matters telated to going concetn
and using the going concetn basis of accounting unless management eithet intends to liquidate
the Company ot to cease opetations, ot has ho tealistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is nota guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan
will always detect 4 matetial misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or
ecror and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasanably he
cxpected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As patt of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform aundit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting {rom fraud is higher than for
one resulting [rom error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
mistepresentations, or the override of internal control;

©  Obtlain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control;

o Dvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditot’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements o, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
ate based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern; and

o Evaluate the overall ptesentation, structute and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosutes, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide to the Board of Dircctors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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tegulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
citcumstances, we determine that a matter should not be comnunicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Repott on Other Legal and Regulatoty Requirements

Based on our audit, we furthet repott that in our opinion except for the effects of the matters
discussed in Basis for Qualified Opinion patagraph, we futther teport that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) have been found adequate for the purpose of our audit;

b) the statement of financial position, the profit and loss account, the statement of
comptehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement (together with
the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Banking Companies Ordinance,
1962 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of
account and retutns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurted and guatantces extended duting the year wete in
accordance with the objects and powets of the Company and the transactions of the Company
which have come to our notice have been within the powets of the Company; and

d) no zakat deductible at soutce under the Zakat and Usht Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement pattner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Muhammad Shaukat Naseeb.

Caat- ()\\MJ\J- B LJ:&—-

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants

I arachi

Date: 25" March 2022

UDIN: AR202110126MigBDFURY
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st & 3rd Floor,
REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON Modern Motors House,
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH Beaumont Roa,

Karachi, Pakistan.

BEST PRACTICE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
T +9221 3567295166

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices of Corporate
Governance (the Statement) prepared by the Board of Pak-Libya Holding Company (Private)
Limited (the Company) for the year ended December 31, 2021. The Code of Cotporate
Governance is no longer applicable on Development Finance Institutions (DFI’s) vide BPRD
Circular no. 14 dated October 20, 20106 issued by the State Bank of Pakistan. However, DFI’s are
expected to continue to follow the best practice on cotporate governance.

The responsibility for voluntary compliance with the Statement is that of the Board of Directors
of the Company. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be
objectively verified, whether the Statement of compliance reflects the status of the Company’s
compliance with the provisions of the Statement and report if it does not and to highlight any
non-compliance with the requirement of the Statement. A review is limited primatily to inquities
of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to
comply with the Statement.

As part of our audit of financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective
audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on
internal control covers all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such
internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risk.

As a best practice, the Company place before the Audit Committee and upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval its
related party transactions distinguishing between transactions cartied out on terms equivalent to
those that prevailed in arm's length transactions and transactions which ate not executed at atm's
length priced recording propet justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are
only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of
the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Commmittee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine whether the related party
transactions were undertaken at arm's length price ot not.

Chartarad Accountants grantthornton.pk
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Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that the
Statement of compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all
material respects, with the best practices of corporate governance followed by the Company for
the year ended December 31, 2021.

,)
2\’-“4)1 \y NV&MW M lA(/J”hM e~

Date : 28" March 2022 rant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Karachi Chartered Accountants

Muhammad Shaukat Naseeb
UDIN: CR202110126pxPQ7Bi6I< Engagement Partner
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STATEMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROLS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

OVERVIEW OF INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

It is the responsibility of the Company’s management to establish and maintain a sound system of
internal controls that helps in effective and efficient operations, reliable financial reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The internal control system comprises of various
inter-related components including Control Environment, Risk Assessment, Control Activities,
Information and Communication and Monitoring,.

Due to inherent limitation, internal controls may not prevent or detect and correct, misstatements. The
internal control system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objective, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss,

Following is the brief on the internal control systems:

e Management identifies control objectives for key areas, makes necessary policies and procedures
for effective controls and ensures implementation of the same,

e Policies for various key areas have been made which have been approved by the Board of
Directors.

e Policies and procedures are reviewed and amendments are made to continuously bring required
improvements in the same from time to time.

e The Company has internal audit function which reports to the Audit Committee and reviews the
application of policies and procedures and ensures identification for rectification of control
weaknesses (if any).

e On aregular basis, observation of control environment, appropriate test of transactions, sharing of
findings of internal control systems and implementation of relevant appropriate corrective actions
are carried out,

e The observations and weaknesses identified and reported by the auditors (internal, external and
the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP)) are duly taken into account by the management and necessary
control measures are taken to avoid repetition of those observations and exceptions.

e Management endeavors to ensure timely and satisfactory response to the recommendations and
suggestions made by the auditors and the same are periodically reviewed for implementation by
the internal audit department.

e Budgets and plans are approved by the Board of Directors which are monitored for
implementation on periodic basis.

e Due aftention is given to enhance overall competence level and knowledge of the employees to
achieve the desired level of internal control systems.

INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

e Documentation for Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting (ICFR) has been updated in
current financial year, as well, to incorporate the updated status of processes and controls as a
result of new operating activities and implementation of related controls/system. This is aimed to
bring further improvement in the ICFR framework of the Company.

s SBP’s instructions (specific or general) issued on the matter of ICFR from time to time are being
complied at earliest possible timelines.

¢ The SBP has granted exemption, to the Company, from the requirement of Statutory Auditors’
Long Form Report on ICFR. Consequently, the Company has been submitting the Audit

Page 1of 2



Committee’s annual assessment report on the efficacy of the Internal Control over Financial
Reporting as required under circular ‘OSED Circular No. 01 of 2014’ dated 7 February 2014,

EVALUATION OF INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS INCLUDING INTERNAL CONTROLS
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Company’s internal controls including internal controls over financial reporting are sound in
design and are being effectively implemented and monitored. The Company has made efforts during
the financial year 2021 to bring further improvements in the internal control systems through
implementation of integrated Credit system and related automated controls. The new system is under
user acceptance testing process therefore any gaps identified are being reviewed vis-a-vis in the
internal control systems, including internal controls over financial reporting and are targeted to be
completed at the earliest possible timeline.

-Sd/- ~8d /=
Khaled Joma Ezarzor Khurram Hussain
Deputy Managing Director Managing Director & CEO
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PakLibya

STATEMENT OF BES’I‘ PRACTICES OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

This statement is being presented to COnform with the best practices of Corporate Governance
which are being practiced by Pak-Libya Holding Company (Private) Limited (“the: Company™).
The Code of Colpm,ate Governance: (the Code) as framed by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan is not mandatory for the DFIs as per BPRD gircular 14 of 2016 issued on
20 Qctober 2016 by the State Bank of Paklstan (SBP).

The Company nevertheless, has applied the prmclples considered to be the best practices in
Corporate Governance in'the following manner:

1;

As per the joint venture arrangement between Government of Pakistan (GoP) and Government
of Libya (State of Libya), the Company’s board of directors comprises of six directors with
three directors nominated by each Governiient. The Company encourages representation of

non-executive dhectars on its board of directors (the Board) At present the Board includes:

Bxecutlve R ’.Mr KhurramHuqsain —Managngneetm
Direstors (two) | Mr, Khaled Joma Ezarzor — Deputy Managmg Dlrecto:

Non-Executive - | Mr. Bashir Blkasm Omer
Directors Mr, Abrar Ahimed Mirza

(Four) - | Mr. Abdulfatah Ashour Ali Ejayedi
‘Dr. Muhammad Tahll Noor

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a dirﬂctor in more than five listed
companies, including this Company. - :

« The Company has prepared code of conduct and slatement of ethlcs and business practices and
‘has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to dlssemlnate it throughout the Company
_along with its supporting policies and procedures.

The Board has developed a yision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. A complete record of pmnculars of significant policies along with
the dates on which they were approved or amended has beeh maintained.

‘All the resident directors of the Company are registered as- taxpayers and none of them has’
defanlted in payment of any finance facility to a banking company, a DFI or an NBFI or, being
a member of a stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter by that stock exchange,

During the year, no vacancy existed on the Board prevel in Janvary 2022, we have
received new nommatmns from. the LAlTlCO whwh ate ifl process of seeking appwval from
the SBP. :

All the powers of the Board haye been duly exet'c;xﬁed and decismns on relevant matters have
beeni taken by the Boatd/Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2017, Banking C‘ompames Ordmance, 1962 and relevant Rules, Regulations,
Cnrculal s/dlrcctlons eto.

Page 1 of 3
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1,

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.
17.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a
director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements
of the Comipanies Act, 2017, Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, Rules and respective
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and, clrculatmg minutes of meeting of the
Board,

The Board of Directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remunerations of
directors in accordance with the Cormpanies Act, 2017, Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962,
Rules, Regulations, Circulars/Directions efc,

All directors were provided with an Orientatjon Package on their appointment. Currently, one
direotor has completed ‘the Diracmrs T1aimng Certificate under the Director’s Training
Program.

The appointments of the Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal
Audit including their remuneration and terms of employment até approved by the Board and
have complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chief Financial Officer before approval of the Boaid,

The Board has formed committees comptising of members given below:

Committee - | Name of Chairman / Membets

| Dr; Muhammad Tahir Noor — Chairman
| Mr, Abrar Ahmed Mirza — Member
Mr, Abdulfatah Ejayedi — Member
‘Mr. Abrar Ahmed Mirza = Chairman
Mr. Abdulfatah Ejayedi — Member

Mt. Khaled Joma Bzarzor — Meniber
Mr. Bashir B, Omer -— Chairman

‘Mr. Abdulfatah Ejayedi — Member

Dr, Muhammad Talir Noor — Member*
Mr. Bashir B, Omer — Chairman

Mr. Abrar Ahmed Mirza — Member
Mr. Khurram Hussain — Member

Audit Commiltee

Risk Management. Committee

Human Resource Management Committee -

Credit / Investment Committee

“The terms of reference of the afuresaid cnmrmtteqs have been fonned, documented and advised
to the respective Committees for comphance.

The frequency of meeting of the committces during the year, were as per follows:
Audlt Committee- ' 4
Risk Management Committee ¥ o8 ' 2

The Boatd has set up an effective intcmal audit function,

The statutory auditors of the Compaty have cgnf‘irmgd that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the ‘Quality Control Review Program’ of The Instituté of Charteted Accountants
of Pakistan (ICAP), that they or any of the partners of the f'lrm'.:thci,r spouses and minor children
do not hold shares of the Company. and that the firm and all'its partners are in compliance with
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on Code of Bthics as adopted by
the I[CAP.

Page 2 of 3



18, The statutory audifors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors confirmed that
they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

19. The SBP vide BPRD circular No. 05 of 2021 dated November 22, 2021, has. infimated that

Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations are not applicable on DFIs,
however, it is expected that all DEIs will continue to follow the best practices- on corporate

_gpvernﬂnt:ﬂ.
-5d/- , : -58d/-
Khaled Joma Ezarzor: -+ Khurram Hussain

Deputy Managing Director = Managing Director & CEO
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PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021
Note 2021 2020
------- (Rupees in '000) -------

ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 5 110,575 63,155
Balances with other banks 6 197,264 82,159
Lendings to financial institutions g 3,800,000 3,400,000
Investments 8 27,211,914 24,912,515
Advances 9 6,312,475 5,674,009
Fixed assets 10 96,472 97,813
Intangible assets 11 973 1,964
Deferred tax asset - net 12 434,796 189,306
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claim - held for sale 143 814,645 1,179,360
Other assets 13 1,642,088 1,410,181

40,621,202 37,010,462
LIABILITIES
Bills payable 15 = -
Borrowings 16 30,149,418 26,391,955
Deposits and other accounts 17 4,576,353 4,042,892
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lcase’ 18 - -
Sub-ordinated loans 19 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 20 - -
Other liabilities 21 320,573 612,550

35,046,344 31,047,397
NET ASSETS 5,574,858 5,963,065
REPRESENTED BY
Share capital 22 8,141,780 7,871,780
Reserves 380,654 372,477
(Deficit) on revaluation of assets - net of tax 23 (847,361) (281,624)
Unappropriated / unremitted (loss) (2,100,215) (2,134,569)
Advance against shares subscription - 135,000

5,574,858 5,963,065

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 24

2
The annexed notes 1 to 51 and annexures I & II form an integral part of these financial statements. Q\M/

7 s

Chief Fl/llﬂ‘{a/l Officer Managing Director & CEO
A
¢;5W-W -

Director




PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Mark-up / return / interest earned
Mark-up / return / interest expensed

Net mark-up / interest income

NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME
Fee and commission income

Dividend income

Foreign exchange income

Income / (loss) from derivatives

(Loss) / gain on securities - net

Other income

Total non mark-up / interest income

Total Income

NON MARK-UP/INTEREST EXPENSLES
Operating expenses

Workers welfare fund

Other charges

Total non mark-up / interest expenses
Profit / (loss) before provisions

Provisions / (reversal) and write offs - net
Extraordinary / unusual items
PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION

Taxation
PROTIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAXATION

Basic earnings / (loss) per share

Diluted carnings / (loss) per share

Note

26
27

28

29
30

31
24.3.9
32

33

34

35

36

2021

2020

------- (Rupees in '000) -------

2,957,508 3,208,957
2,351,649 2,496,438
605,949 712,519
15,797 15,183
80,017 55,339
7 99
(79,711) 428,909
14,058 4,070
30,154 503,600
636,103 1,216,119
476,925 559,328
16,609 16,525
493,534 575,853
142,569 640,266
100,102 180,293
42,467 459,973
1,584 155,835
40,83 304,138
womerns (RUPEES) =snnen
50.63 443.23
50.63 443.23

. . o
The annexed notes 1 to 51 and annexures I and II form an integral part of these financial statements. { ,(VJ/

D

Chief Findgeigl Officer

Managing Director & CEO

Director




1 PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED
: STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Note 2021 2020
B e e (Rupees in 000)-=r-mmmem-

Profit after taxation 40,883 304,138

Other comprehensive income - net 3
Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss account in subsequent years:

Effect of translation of net investment in foreign branches - -
Movement in (deficit) / surplus on revaluation of investments - net of tax* (565,737) (245,288)
Others = -

) (565,737) (245,288)
| Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account in subsequent years:

Remeasurement gain on defined benefit obligations 39.8.2 2,997 5,367
Movement in surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets - net of tax - -
Movement in surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets - net of tax =

| 2,997 5,367

Total comprehensive (loss) / income (521,857) 64,217

*Surplus / (deficit) arising on revaluation of 'Available-for-sale securities' - net of tax has been shown in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in order to comply with the revised "Prudential Regulations for Corporate / Commercial Banking" issued
by the State Bank of Pakistan vide BPRD Circular No. 06 of 2014 on 26 June 2014,

Ny
The annexed notes 1 to 51 and annexures I and II form an integral part of these financial statements, ™
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PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Surplus/(Deficit)

Share capital/ i cevalaatibn af Unappropriated/
Statutory Tigiai
Hend office capital reserve*® Fixed / Non Banking  Unremitted profit/
Investments
account Assels (loss)
(Rupees in '000)

Opening balance as at 1 January 2020 6,141,780 311,650 (36,336) - (2,363,577) 4,053,517
(Loss) after taxation for the year 2019 ' - - - - 304,138 304,138
Other comprehensive income - net of tax - = (245,288) - - (245,288)
Remittances made to/ received from head office - - - - - =
Transfer to statutory reserve - 60,828 - - (60,828) -
Transfer from surplus on revaluation of

asscls to unapprnprialeﬂ profit - net of tax - - - - - -
Remeasurement gain on defined =

benefit obligations - - - 5,367 5,367
Transactions with owners, recorded

directly in equity - - - - - %
Dividend - - - - = s
Issue of share capital 1,730,000 - - - - 1,730,000
Stamp duty on shares issuance - - - - (19,669) {19,669)
Exchange adjustments on revaluation of capital - - - - - -
Opening balance as at 01 January 2021 7,871,780 372,478 (281,624) - (2,134,569) 5,828,065
Profit after taxation for the year 2021 - - - - 40,883 40,883
Other comprehensive income - nel of tax - - (565,737) - - (565,737)
Remittances made tof received from head office - - - - - -
Transfer o statutory reserve - 8,177 - - (8,177) -
“Transfer from surplus on revaluation of

assets to unappropriated profit - net of tax - - - - - -
R gain on defined .

benefit obligations - - - 2,997 2,997
Transaclions with owners, recorded

directly in equity
Dividend - - - - - -
Issue of share capital 270,000 - - - - 270,000
Stamp duty on shares issuance - - § - (1,350) (1,350)
Exchange adj on revaluation of capital - 4 § - - -
Closing balance for the year 2021 85141!780 380,654 (847,361) - (2,100,215) 5!5742353

According to BPD Circular No, 15 dated 31 May 2004 issued by the SBP, an amount not less than 20% of the after tax profits shall be transferred to create a reserve fund till such time the reserve fund
equals the amount of the paid-up capital and alter that a sum not less than 5% of profit afler tax shall be credited to the statutory reserve.

N
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PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Note 2021 2020
——----- (Rupees in '000) -------
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/ (loss) before taxation 42,467 459,973
Less: Dividend income (80,017 (55,339)
(37,550) 404,634
Adjustments;
Depreciation 10.2 35,272 30,720
Amortization 11 1,075 1,226
(Reversal) of provision against lendings to financial institutions 7 (2,497) -
Unrealised loss on revaluation of investments classified as ‘held-for trading' i & 412
(Reversal) of provision/provision for diminution in the value of investments - net 83.1 (49,401) 17,811
(Reversal) of provision against loans and advances 9.4 (302,367) (52,518)
Provision against non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claim - held for sale 13.2.1 364,715 -
(Reversal) of provision/provision against other assets 13.3.1 20,221 -
(Reversal) of provision/provision against contingencies 21 (215,000) 215,000
(Gain) on sale of operating fixed assets - 30 (10,325) (544)
(158,307) 212,107
(195,857) 616,741
(Increase) / decrease in operafing assets
Lendings to financial institutions (47,503) 50,000
Held-for-trading securities 14,803 (7,313)
Advances (336,100) (1,096,340)
Others assets (excluding advance taxation) 34,168 26,309
(334,632) (1,026,844)
Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities
Bills payable - -
Borrowings from financial institutions 3,757,463 4,477,808
Deposits 533,461 2,491,872
Other liabilities (73,980) 23,745
4,216,944 6,993,425
3,686,456 6,583,322
Income tax paid (302,973) (356,337)
Net cash gencrated from operating activities 3,383,483 6,226,985
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investments in ‘available-for-sale' securities - nel (2,910,175) (6,393,230}
Investiments in 'held-to-maturity' securities - net (150,760) 130,695
Dividend received 80,017 55,339
Investments in operaling fixed assels - net (34,015) (43,282)
Proceeds from sale of operating fixed assefs 10,325 2,448
Proceeds from sale of shares of subsidiary company - 4,000
Net cash flow (used) in investing activities (3,004,608) (6,244,030)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts/payments of subordinated debt = 5
Receipts/payments of lease obligations - -
Issue of share capital 270,000 1,730,000
Advance against share subsctiption (135,000) (1,065,000)
Stamp duty on shares issuance 4 (1,350) (19,669)
Dividend paid - &
Remiltances made to/received from company = -
Net cash flow generated from financing activities 133,650 645,331
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 512,525 628,286
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 2,495,314 1,867,029
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year : 37 3,007,839 2495314

The annexed notes 1 to 51 and Annexures I & II form an integral part of these financial statements. l"r\v)/
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PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

11

Pak-Libya Holding Company (Private) Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as a private limited company on 14 Octaber 1978. It is a joint
venture between the Government of Pakistan and Government of Libya (State of Libya). The tenure of the Company was thirty years from the date of its
establishment. The two contracting parties (i.e. both the govemments through their representatives) extended the tenure of the Company for further thirty years
upto 14 October 2038, The objectives of the Company interalia include the promotion of economic growth of Pakistan through industrial development, to
undertake other feasible business and to establish and acquire companies to conduct various busi as may be decided from time to time. The Company is
designated as a Development Financial Institution (DFI) under the BPD Circular No, 35 dated 28 October 2003 issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP),

The registered office of the Company is located at Sth Floor, Block C, Finance and Trade Centre, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, Pakistan. The Company has one
sales and service center located at Lahore. Effective 05 August 2012, activities of Islamabad office have been suspended for the time being after review of the
business strategy.

The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) through its BSD Circular No. 19 dated 05 September 2008 has prescribed that the minimum paid-up capital (free of losses) for
Devel Financial Institutions (DFIs) is required to be maintained at Rs. 6 billion.

L

+h

Consequent to the approval of revised business strategy including 5 year plan by the BoD tog with projections, the gement of the Company has taken

various steps to improve the financial position of the Company which is evident in the results.

During the year, the Company has received remaining portion of final tranche of Rs.135 million from GoP and issued shares amounting to Rs.270 million (Rs.135
million each shareholder); therefore, the paid up capital of the Company has increased to Rs.8,141 billion and its capital free of losses met the minimum capital

requirements,

Consequently, the paid-up capital of the Company (free of losses) at year end amounted to Rs. 6.042 billion (31 December 2020: Rs. 5.737 billion).
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7 PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- The accounting and reporting standards comprise of such Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the Intemnational
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFASs) issued by the ICAP, as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017;
- Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Directives issued by the SBP and the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ("the SECP"),

Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 or the direclives issued by the SBP and the SECP differ
with the requirements of IFRS or IFASs, the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 and the said directives shall

prevail,

The SBP through its BSD circular No. 10 dated 26 Aupust 2002 has deferred the implementation of IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’, and
IAS 40 “Investment Property’ for Non-Bank Financial Institutions (NBFIs) in Pakistan. The SECP has deferred applicability of IFRS-7 "Financial Instruments:
Disclosures" on banks through S.R.O 411(1)/2008 dated 28 April 2008. Accordingly, the requirements of these IASs have not been considered in the preparation of these
financial statements. However, investments have been classified and valued in accordance with the requirements of various circulars issued by the SBP.

Sl cdat

These financial stat ts have been presented in

The SBP vide BPRD circular No. 2 dated 25 January 2018 has issued revised format of annual fi
accordance with such revised format. :

These financial statements represents standalone financial statements of the Company.

Standards, interpretations of and amendments to the published approved accounting standards that are effective in the current year

There are certain new amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Company's accounting periods beginning on or after | January 2021
but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the Company's operation and therefore not detailed in these financial statements, except as

follows:

Effective Date

(Annual periods beginning
on or after)

New o1 Revised Standard or Interpretation

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, TAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16) 1 January 2021

The adoption of IFRS does not have any material impact on the Company's financial statements,
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Standards, interpretations of and amendments to the published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

There are certain standards, amendments and ilﬂerpretntions with respect to the approved accounting standards that are not yet effective and are not expected to have any
material impact on the Company's financial statements in the period of their initial application.

The following new standards and amendments to existing accounting standards will be effective from dates mentioned below against respective standards or amendments,

Effective date (annual periods
beginning on or after)
Annual improvements to [FRS standards 2018 - 2020 Cycle 1 January 2022

IFRS 3 - References to Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022

IAS 16 - Proceeds before intended use 1 January 2022

IAS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a contract 1 January 2022
IAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2022
IAS 12 - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction 1 January 2023
Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2) 1 January 2023
TAS 8 - 'Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
IFRS 16 - Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond June 30, 2021 1 April 2021

Following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of
applicability in Pakistan.

IASB effective date

(Annual periods beginning

Standard or Inferpretation
on or after)

IFRS 17 'Insurance Contracts' 1 January 2023

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management lo exercise ils judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas invalving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are as follows:

a) Provision for bad and doubtful advances including net investment in lease (note 4.5)

b) Classification and provisioning of investments (note 4.4 & 4.15)

c) Depreciation of property and equipment and amortisation of intangible assets (note 4.6)
d) Assumptions and estimation in recognition of deferred taxation (note 4.13)

e) Accounting for defined benefit plan and compensated absences (note 4,9)

f) TIimpairment (note 4.14)
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Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectation of future events that are believed lo be
reasonable under the circumstances.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that cerfain investments have been stated at revalued amounts in accordance
with the directives of the SBP.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies and the methods of computation adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are same as those applied in the preparation of the annual
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with SBP revised format of financial statements for Banks / DFIs issued vide BPRD circular No,
02 of 2018.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and balances with treasury banks, balances with other banks and placements with financial institutions having
maturities of three (3) months or less.

Securities under repurchase / resale agreements

Securities sold with a simultaneous commitinent to repurchase at a specified fulure date (repos) continue to be recognised in the statement of financial position
and are measured in accordance with accounting policies for investment securities. The counterparty liability for amounts received under these agreements is
included in borrowings. The difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as mark-up / return / interest expense and accrued over the life of the repo
agreement using effective yield method.

Securities purchased with a corresponding commitment to resell at a specified future date (reverse repos) are not recognised in the statement of financial
position, as the Company does not obtain control over the securities, Amounts paid under these agreements are included in lendings. The difference between
purchase and resale price is treated as mark-up / retumn / interest income and accrued over the life of the reverse repo agreement using effective yield method.

Investments

Investments other than those categorised as held-for-trading are initially recognised at fair value which includes transaction costs associated with the
investments. Investments classified as held-for-trading are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss account.

The Company has classified its investments, except for strategic investment in joint venture, into ‘held-for-trading’, “held-to-maturity’ and *available-for-sale’
portfolios as follows:

Held-for-trading

These ave securities which are acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantage of short-term market / interest rate movements and are to be sold within
90 days. These are carried at market value, with the related gain / (loss) on revaluation being taken to profit and loss account.

Intra day trading
The cost of acquisition of *dealing securities” (i.c. listed securities purchased and sold on the same day) is not considered for calculating the ‘moving average

cost’ of ofher listed securities (i.e. listed securities sold after the date of purchase).
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Held-to-maturity

These are sceurities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that are held with the intention and ability to hold to maturity. These are carried at
amortised cost.

Available-for-sale

These are investments that do not fall under the held-for-trading or held to maturity categories. Investments are initially recognised at cost being its fair value
which includes transaction costs associated with the investment. These are carried at market value except for unlisted securities where market value is not
available, which are carried at lower of cost and break-up value, if any. Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation is taken to ‘surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of assets’
account, Provision for diminution in value of investments in respect of unlisted shares is calculated with reference to book value of the same. On derecognition

of quoted available-for-sale investments, the cumulative gain or loss previously reported as 'surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of investments' is included in the
profit and loss account for the period,

The Company amortises the premium / discount on acquisition of govemment sccurities using the effective yield method,
Provision for diminution in value of investments for unlisted debt securities is calculated as per the SBP’s Prudential Regulations,

The Company follows the ‘Settlement date’ accounting for investments,

Gains and losses arising on sale of investments are recognised in the profit and loss account,
Investment in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary are valued at cost less impairment, if any. Gains and losses on disposal of investments is recognised in the profit and loss account.

Investment in associate

Associates are {hose entities in which the Company has significant influence but does not have control over the financial and operating policies. The Company
recognizes gains and losses of the associates on equity accounting basis, from the date significant influence commences until the date that significant influence
ceases, until the share of losses exceeds ils interest in associate.

Advances including net investment in finance leases

Advances are stated as net of provisions for bad and doubtful debts, if any, which are charged to the profit and loss account currently, Advances are written off
where there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

The Company determines the provisions against advances on a prudent basis keeping in view the stipulations of the prudential regulations issued by the SBP.
The provision is charged to profit and loss account.

Leases

When substantially all risks and rewards related to ownership of the assets are transferred to the lessee, such leases are classified as finance lease.

A receivable is recognised at an amount equal to the present value of the lease payment. The difference between gross receivable and the present value of the
receivable is recognised as uneamed finance income.

Provisions

Specific

Specific provision against funded loans is determined in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations and other dircctives issued by SBP and
charged to the profit and loss account.

General provision

General provision is maintained on consumer financing portfolio in accordance with the requirements of Prudential Regulations for Consumer Financing issued
by SBP and charged to the profit and loss account,

Operating fixed assets and depreciation

4.6.1 Owned

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Capital work in progress is stated at cost, and these
are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are available for use.

Residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each balance sheet date, and adjusted if impact on depreciation is considered significant.

Depreciation is charged to the profit and loss account applying the straight-line method whereby the cost of an asset is written off over its estimated
service life.

Depreciation on additions in the first half of the month and disposals in the second half of the month is charged for the whole month whereas no
depreciation is charged on additions during the second half of the month and disposals in the first half of the month. -

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred.

Assets are derecognised when no future economic benefit is expected from its use or disposal, Profit or loss on sale or retivement of fixed assets is
included in the profit and loss account,
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4.6.2 Leased

Assets held under finance leases are accounted for by recording the assets and related liabilities-at (he amounts determined on the basis of lower of fair
value of assets and the present value of minimum lease payments, Finance charge is allocated to accounting periods in a manner as to provide a constant
rate on the outstanding liability, Depreciation is charged on leased assets on a basis similar to that of owned assets.

4.6.3 Right of use assets (ROUA)

The Company recognises ‘Right of use asset’ (ROUA) in respect of the leases measured as the present value of the remaining lease payments on
property lease agreements and discounted using the incremental borrowing rate for the Company. These assets are depreciated on a straight line basis
over the lease term as this method most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of future cconomic benefits. These assets are also reduced
by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of lease liability.

4.6.4 Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets having a finite life are amortised using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives after taking into account the residual
value, if any.

Amortisation on additions and deletions of intangible asscts during the year is charged in proportion to the period of use.

Amortisation on additions in the first half of the month and disposals in the second half of the month is charged for the whole month whereas no
amortisation is charged on additions during the second half of the month and disposals in the first half of the month.

MNon-banlking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims are initially measured at cost / forced sale value at the time of acquisition, These assets are revalued as
per SBP's requirement by independent professionally qualified valuer to ensure (hat their carring value does not exceed their fair value / valuation.

Borrowings and deposits

Borrowings and deposits are recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Mark-up on borrowings and deposits are charged to profit and loss account on a
time proportion basis.

Staff retirement benefits
Defined benefit plan
- Gratuity Fund

The Company operates a funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees in accordance with the human resource policy of the Company and
terms of cmployment for managing director and deputy managing director. Contributions towards defined benefit schemes are made on the basis of
actuarial advice using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Actuarial gains or losses are recognised in accordance with the requirements of IAS-19 (Revised).

The last actuarial valuation of the scheme was carried out as at 31 December 2021, The benefit under the gratuity scheme is payable on retirement at the
age of 60 or earlier cessation of service, in lump sum,

- Benevolent Fund

The Company operates a benevolent fund scheme for its employees where equal fixed contributions are being made by employees and the Company.
Employees ar their legal heirs are entitled to certain pre-defined benefits on happening of specified events including retirement, incapacitation, marriage
and death etc. as per their entitlement, Contributions paid by Company to the fund are included in expenses for the year.

Defined contribution plan

The Company also operales a recognised provident fund scheme for its permanent employees. Equal monthly contributions are made, both by the Company and
the employees, to the fund at a rate of 3.5 and 4 (2020: 3.5 and 4) percent respectively and 10 percent of salary for the managing director and deputy managing
director, as applicable. The Company has no further payment obligation once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as an expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction of the future payments is available.
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Compensated absences

The liability in respect of compensated absences of employees is accounted for in the period in which it is eamed in tenms of salary earned upto the statement
of financial position date.

The Company recognises provision for compensated absences on the basis of actuarial valuation under Projected Unit Credit Method, The last actuarial
valuation was carried out as at 31 December 2021,

Deferred Bonus

The Company has implemented a deferred bonus policy wherein 20 percent annual bonus amount, for every year, will be deferred and be payble over three
year. The annual bonus amount, for any year must meet already approved threshold, and will be based on Company’s overall performance (encompassing
individual business lines assessed through respective departmental key performance indicators KPIs). A separate Bonus Pool will be created from the Profit
before Tax. The Company will set aside a percentage of this profit before tax as the Combined Bonus Pool for all Employees (permanent and contractual)
including the material risk takers (MRTs), material risk controller/risk controllers (MRCs/RCFs). The performance bonus of Material Risk Takers (MRTS) is
subject to appropriate risk adjustments, with the objective to limit performance bonus for excessive risk taking. Company's Risk adjusted Remuneration

Framework is based on the following components:

- Risk profiling;

- Identification of risk takers, risk controllers and others;
- Materiality assessment; and

- Risk adjustments (including deferment and malus).

The deferred amount has been invested and will continue to be reinvested in debt securities until paid lo the eligible employees.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates, These
financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated into Pakistani Rupee at the rates of exchange prevailing on the balance sheet date. Exchange pains and losses are included in the profit and loss
account, Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date

of the transaction.

Commitinents for letters of credit and letters of guarantee denominated in foreign currencies are expressed in Rupee terms at the rates of exchange prevailing at
the statement of financial position date,

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that the economic benefils associated with a transaction will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably

measured.

Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive payment is established.
Gain on sale of securities is recognised at the time of sale of relevant securities.

Project evaluation, arrangement and front end fee are accounted for on receipt basis.

Income from loans, term finance certificates, sukuks, debentures, bank deposits, government securities and reverse repo transactions are recognised on accrual
basis using the effective interest method except where recovery is considered doubtful in which case the income is recognised on receipt basis.

Premium or discount on debt securities is amortised using the effective interest method and taken to profit and loss account.

The Company follows the finance method in recognising income on lease contracts. Under this method the unearned income i.c. the excess of aggregale lease
rentals and the estimated residual value over the cost of the leased asset is deferred and then amortised over the term of the lease, so as to produce a constant

rate of return on net investiment in the lease,

Taxation

Current

The charge for current laxation is based on laxable income at the current rates of taxation afler taking into account the fax credits and tax rebales available, if

any.

Deferred

The Company accounts for deferred taxation using the balance sheet liability method on temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using the applicable tax rates. A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable
{hat fulure taxable profits will be available and the credits will be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the

related tax benefit will be realised,

Impairment

The carrying amounis of the Company's assets are reviewed at cach statement of financial position date to determine whether there is any indication of
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impairment. If such indication exists the assets' recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds its recoverable amount, Impairment losses are recognised in profit and loss account,
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation,

Provision against identified non-funded losses is recognised when intimated and reasonable certainty exists for the Company to settle the obligation. The
pravision is charged to the profit and loss account net of expected recovery and the provision is classified under other liabilities.

Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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Off-setting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is set off and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position if the Company has a legal right to set off
the transaction and also intends either fo settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Dividend and reserves

Dividend declared and appropriations, except for transfer of statutory reserve, made subsequent to the balance sheet date are recognised as liability and
recorded as changes in reserves respectively in the period in which these are approved by the directors / shareholders as appropriate.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its shareholders. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is detenmined by adjusting
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharcholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares, if any.

Segmient reporting
An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may eam revenues and incur expenses; whose operating

results are regularly reviewed by the entily’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its
perforinance and for which discrete financial information is available,

The Company's primary format of reporting is based on its business segments for which individual business strategies are formulated based on Company's
overall business strategy and implemnentation plan,

Business segments

Following are the main segments of the Company:

Corporate & Includes loans, advances, lease financing, advisory services, mergers and acquisitions and other such corporate
Investment Banking and investment banking transactions. :
Treasury Undertakes Company's fund management activities through leveraging and investing in liquid assets such as short

term placements, government securities and reverse repo activities. It carries out spread based activities in the
interbank market and manages the interest rate risk exposure of the Company.

Capital Market Undertakes trading and investment primarily in listed sceurities with an aim to earn trading gains from market
fluctuation and to hold securities for dividend income and price appreciation in the form of capital gain.

SME & Retail Banking Undertakes SME and Retail Finance activities via bills discounting, business loans against morigaged property,
aulo-lease financing and consumer financing.

Geographical segments

The geographical spread of Company's operations is limited to Pakistan only.
Borrowing cost

Borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except where such costs are directly atiributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying asset in which case such costs are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

Deposits and their cost
Deposils are recorded at the fair value of proceeds received.

Deposit costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred using effective mark-up / interest rate method.
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Note | 2021 || 2020 |

=~===== (Rupees in '000) -------
CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS

In hand
Local currency 6 G
Foreign currency 5,324 5,749
5,330 5,755
With State Bank of Pakistan in
Local currency current account é 5.1 [ 103,460 | | 56,448 |
103,460 56,448
With other central banks in
Foreign currency current account a =
Foreign currency deposit account 2 =
With National Bank of Pakistan in
Local currency current account 1,785 952
Local currency deposit account - s
1,785 952
Prize bonds - &
110,575 63,155

5.1 This includes a balance required to be maintained with the SBP by the Company in accordance with the SBP's regulations for cash reserve
requirements.

Note L2021 || 2020
------- (Rupees in '000) -------
BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS
In Pakistan
In current accounts 14,613 29,992
In deposit accounts 6.1 182,651 52,167
197,264 82,159
QOutside Pakistan
In current accounts n 5
In deposit accounts - %
197,264 82,159

6.1 The return on these balances ranges from 5.50 (o 7.25 (31 December 2020: 5.50 to 11.30) percent per annum,

2021 2020
------- (Rupees in '000) -------

LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Call / clean money lending T1id 3,830,567 3,433,064
= 3,830,567 3,433,064
Less: provision held against lending to financial institutions 73 (30,567) (33,064)
Lending to financial institutions - net of provision 3,800,000 3,400,000
7.1 Particulars of lending
In local currency 3,800,000 3,400,000
In foreign currencies - i
3,500,000 3,400,000

7.1.1 Call/ clean money lending includes term deposit receipts carrying mark-up at rates ranging from 8.60 to 12.50 (31 December 2020: 7.65 to 9.50)
percent per annum. These are due to mature between 31 January 2022 and 28 June 2022 (31 December 2020: 29 January 2021 and 28 April

2021).
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L 2021 I 2020
--—---- (Rupces in '000) -------
Sccurities held as collateral against-Lending
to financial institutions Held by Further given Total Held by Further given Total
Company || as collateral Company as collateral
Market treasury bills - - - - = =
Pakistan investment bonds B - - = . 5
Others - & = 5 - n
Total - = = : = =
Category of classification | 2021 2020
Classified Provision Classified Provision
Lending held Lending held
-====-- Rupees in ‘000 ~----
Domestic
Other assels especially mentioned - - = s
Substandard - a & s
Doubtful % = = :
Loss 30,567 30,567 33,064 33,064
Total 30,567 30,567 33,064 33,064
Overseas

The Company does not have any overseas lending as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020

:Nil).




8 INVESTMENTS

8.1 Investments by type:

Held-for-trading securities

Federal government securities
Shares

Available-for-sale securities
Federal government securities

Shares
Non government debt securities

Held-to-maturity securities
Non government debt securities

Associates

Subsidiaries

Total

Particulars of Associates

Name of investee % Holding
FTC Management Company Limited
(CEO - Mr. Kalim Sheikh)
Unlisted ordinary Shares 9.10%
Kamoki Energy Limited (under liquidation)
Unlisted ordinary shares 50%
‘Unlisted preference shares 100%

Kamole Powergen (Private) Limited
(CEQ - Mr. Farooq Mughal)

Unlisted ordinary shares 20%

PAK-LIEYA HOLDING COMPANY(PRIVATE) LIMITED

2021

2020

(Rupees in '000) ——
Cost/

(Rupees in '000) -—--—

Provision for Surplus / il Provision for
amortised diminution (deficif) Carrying value amortised fiminution Surplus / (deficit) Carrying value
cost cost
= - - - 15214 - (412) 14,803
5 = = - 15214 . (412) 14,803
24,973,269 " (1,092,638) 23,880,631 - 22,033,674 % (367,698) 21,665,976
1,319,925 (323,765) (96,619) 899,541 1,227,537 (373,166) (35,798) 818,573
2,568,938 (343,758) (14,074) 2,211,106 2,690,747 (343,758) __(3.701) 2,345.287
28,862,132 (667,523) (1,203,331) 26,991,278 25,951,957 (716,924) (407,197) 24,827,836
225,502 (6,366) - 219,136 " 74,742 (6,366) - 68,376
225,502 (6,366) - 219,136 74,742 (6,366) = 68,376
706,367 (704,867) - 1,500 706,367 (704,867) - 1,500
29,794,001 (1,378,756) (1,203,331) 27,211,914 26,748,280 (1,428,157) (407,609) 24,912,515
2021 11 2020 2021 || 2020
Based on
Number of shares Cost Assets Liabilities Audited financial
statements as at
--- (Rupees in '000) — --- (Rupees in '000) — f
50,000 50,000 500 500 559,964 118,935 30 June 2021
50,000,000 50,000,000 404,867 44,867 - -
30,000,000 30,000,000 300,000 300,000 - - Under liquidation
100,000 - 1,000 1,000 5,714 1,516  RUHHERHHRERTEHER
706,367 706,367 565,678 120,451




8.2 Investments by segments:
Federal government securities
Market treasury bills*
Pakistan investment bonds

Shares
Listed companies
Unlisted companies

Non government debt securities
Listed
Unlisted

Associates

FTC Management Company Limited
Unlisted ordinary shares

Kamoki Energy Limited

(Joint Venture under Liquidation)
Unlisted ordinary shares
Unlisted preference shares

Kamoke Powergen (Pvt.) Limited
Unlisted ordinary shares

Total

8.2.1 Investments given as collateral

Market treasury bills
Pakistan investment bonds

2021 [l 2020 |
-—--- (Rupees in '000) —— —-—- (Rupees in '000) ~——
Cost/ Provision for . Carrying Cost/ Provision for ; Carrying
amortised cost diminution Syl { (dett) value amortised cost diminution i/ (et value

5,969 - - 5,969 - - - -
24,967,299 - (1,092,638) 23,874,661 22,035,674 - (367,698) 21,665,976
— 24,973,268 - (1,092,638) 23,880,630 22,033,674 - (367,698) 21,665,976
1,267,624 (271,464) (96,619) 899,541 1,190,450 (320,865) (36,210) 833,376

52,301 (52,301) - - 52,301 (52,301) - =
1,319,925 (323,765) (96,619) 899,541 1,242,751 (373,166) (36,210) 833,376
752,253 (22,387) (14,074) 715,792 867,300 (22,387) (3,701) 841,212
2,042,188 (327,737) - 1,714,451 1,898,189 (327.737) - 1,570,452
>, 2,794,441 (350,124) (14,074) 2,430,243 2,765,489 (350,124) (3,701) 2,411,663
500 - - 500 500 - - 500

404,367 (404,867) - - 404,867 (404,867) - -

300,000 (300,000) - - 300,000 (300,000) = 2
1,000 - - 1,000 1,000 - - 1,000
706,367 (704,867) = 1,500 706,367 (704,867} = 1,500
29,794,001 (1,378.756) (1,203,331) 27,211,914 26,748,281 (1,428,157) (407.609) 24912515

* The deferred bonus related to eligible empoyees have been invested/revinvested in market treasury bills amounting to Rs, 5.969 million whilst its related income has been recorded in other liabilities.
2021 2020
Cost
(Rupees in '000) ——

6,000 -
22,695,000 17,885,000
22,701,000 17,885,000

826

824
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This represents 50% shareholding in the ordinary shares (Rs.10 each) of Kamoki Energy Limited (KEL), which has been fully provided. The book value represents
cost of investment amounting to Rs. 500 million less share of loss on interest in joint venture amounting to Rs. 95.133 million upto 30 June 2012. This investment
was designated as gic i under the Prudential Regulations for Corporate / Commercial Banking.

These include preference shares amounting to Rs.300 million which are cumulative, convertible, redeemable and non-participatory carrying dividend at the rate of
17% per annum having face value of Rs,10 each. These were redeemable within four years of the allotment date. If preference shares are not fully redeemed by the
issuer in this time period, the remaining part along with the unpaid dividend thereon would be convertible at the option of preference shareholder at par value of
Rs.10 into ordinary shares ranking pari passu in all respects with the ordinary shares except for participation in dividend / bonus distribution for the period for which
preference share dividend has been paid.

It includes unlisted ordinary shares of FTC Management Company (Private) Limited. FTC Management Company (Private) Limited was incorporated in Pakistan. It
is engaged in managing, operating and maintaining building housing offices with the name Finance and Trade Centre (FTC) for the mutual benefits of its owners and
thus providing a nucleus for all joint and common services which are available in the FTC situated in Karachi,

The Company established a wholly owned subsidiary named Kamoke Powergen (Private) Limited with a paid-up capital of Rs. 5 million representing 500,000
ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each. KPL has been established as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) to obtain power generation license from NEPRA to increase the
saleability of assets of KEL. SBP's approval was obtained for the formation of KPL which was granted vide letter No. BPRD/RPD/27366/16 dated 16 November
2016. In the year 2020, the Company has disposed off its major sharcholding and management control, therefore, the subsidiary has become an associate,

It includes an investment in listed term finance certificates (TFC) amounting to Rs. 398.58 million comprising 79,955 units. During last quarter of the 2018, upon
maturity, the issuer informed investors (he status of minii capital requi and its pending merger with and into another Bank. As a result, issuer could not
make the final payment of its mark-up and entire principal amount. Consequently, an extraordinary meeting of the TFC holders was held on 19 November 2018
wherein the majority of the TFC holders apreed to extend the maturity date of the TFC Tssuc for a period of one year (27 October 2019) on the existing terms and
conditions as the counter party invoked the lock-in clause governed by clause 4.1.1 of the 'Declaration of Trust' to hold the payment till the minimum capital
requirement is met. The clause is mandatorily invoked for the time being until proposed merger, however, the pending merger had been called off and the Bank
started working to resolve the issue. Therefore, another extraordinary meeting of the TFC holders was held on 20 November 2019 wherein, considering the
developments, the majority TFC holders agreed to extend the maturity of the TFC Issue for a period of another one year (27 October 2020) on the same terms.

Considering the delay is resolution, the TFC holders again agreed to extend the maturity period for another year ending 27 Qctober 2022 so the Bank could finalise
new arrangement with the investors for equity injection. The Bank acknowledges the debt and related mark-up as payable on the TFC Issue.

In this regard, SBP has given ils final approval for the period till 27 October 2021 however the Bank has requested a separate in-principal approval (similar to prior
year) for the period covering till 27 October 2022.

The manag has evaluated overall situation vis-a-vis Bank’s intention and ability to pay; accordingly, concluded that bath the elements exist as it acknowledges
the debt and there are no restrictions on its operations while the payment is delayed due to minimum capital requirements. Therefore, management has not provided
any impairment on the said TFCs on subjective basis due to above facts and the recent developments & negotiations, in these financial statements,

Nole l 2021 | [ 2020 I
-- (Rupees in '000) ---

Provision for diminution in value of investments

Opening balance 1,428,156 1,410,345
Add: adjustments during the period / year = &
Charge / reversals
Charge for the year 95,689 77,339
Reversals for the year 5 =
(Reversal) / eharge on disposals (145,089)] | (59,528)
a3 (49,400) 17,811
Transfers / Mark-to-market - net - =
Amounts written off _ -
Closing balance 1,378,756 1,428,156
Particulnrs of provision against debl securitics
Category of clnssification | 2021 11 2020 |
Classified Provision Classified Provision
Domestic esanmansmannemaneennes (Rupees in '000) srassaseas s
Other assets especially mentioned . & = .
Substandard* ¢ 99,920 11,209 99,940 11,209
Doubtful - - - -
Loss 338,915 338,915 338,915 338,915
438,835 350,124 438,855 350,124
* Included herein is subjective provision on a certain exposure.
Overseas
‘The Company does not have any overseas investment during the year ended 31 D ber 2021 (31 D ber 2020 : Nil).
Qunlity of Available for Sale securities
Details regarding quality of Available for sale (AFS) securilies are as follows: _
Note | 2021 1{ 2020 |
-- (Rupecs in '000) ---
Cost Cost
Federal Government Securities - Government guaranieed
Market treasury bills 6,000 -
Pakistan investment bonds 8.4.1 22,695,000 17,885,000
ljarah sukuk - =
Others - -
22,701,000 17,885,000
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Pakistan Investment Bonds

Floater
These Pakistan investment bonds carry interest rate ranging from 8,23 to 10.55 (31 December 2020: 7.89) percent per annum, Effective

yield on investinent ranges from 7.89 to 11.33 (31 December 2020: 7.57) percent per annum maturing latest by August 2029 (31
December 2020: August 2029). These are held by the SBP and are eligible for rediscounting.

Fixed
These Pakistan investment bonds carry interest rate ranging from 9.50 to 10.00 (31 December 2020: 9.50 to 10.00) percent per annum.
Effective yield on investment ranges from 8.25 to 11.50 (31 December 2020: 8.25 to 11.51) percent per annum and will be maturing

latest by September 2029 (31 December 2020: September 2029). These are held by the SBP and are eligible for rediscounting,

Provincial government securities - government guaranteed

8.4.2

8.4.2.1

8.4.2.1.1

8.4.2.2

8.4.2.2.1

The Company does not have any investment in provincial government guaranleed securities (31 December 2020: Nil).

[ 2021 I 2020 ]
Cost Sector Wise Cosl Sector Wise
Shares Exposure Exposure
(Rupees in "000) (Rupees in '000)
Listed companies

- Fertilizer ] y 280,724 o 22.15% 506,110 43.06%
- Commercial banks 233,618 18.43% 214,660 18.27%
- Financial services 63,567 5.01% 42,025 3.58%
- Chemicals 5810 | 0.46% - 0.00%
~ Non life insurance 139,341 10.99% 174,808 14.87%
- Food & Personal care products 28,412 2,24% 31,386 2.67%

- Pharmaceuticals 4,232 0.33% - -

- Cement 48,648 3.84% - -

- Automabile 34,416 2.71% - -
- Textile 58,376 4.61% 80,764 6.87%
- Power generation & dibtribution 87,032 6.87% 25,012 2.13%
- Engineering 58,852 4.64% 11,507 0.98%
- 0il & gas 199,012 15.70% 77,069 6.56%
- Cable & electrical goods 25,575 2.02% 11,893 1.01%

1,267,624 1,175,236

The nominal value of each share held in a listed company is Rs.10 per share as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020,

2021 2020
Unlisted companies % holding Cost Brealkup Cost Breakup
value value
(Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)
Agro Dairies Limited b 2,301 % 2,301 *
CEQ - Mr. Mukhtar Hussain Rizvi
Pakistan Textile City Limited 4%
CEQ - Mr. Muhammad Hanif 50,000 Wk 50,000 **
52,301 52,301

1,319,925 1,227,537

* Under litigation
*#* | atest financial statements of Pakistan Textile City Limited are not available. The Company was under liquidation however, Ministry

of Commerce & textile vide letter F.5(7) TID/18/Dev-1I dated 24 April 2019 has stopped the process of liquidation and is working on a
business plan for submission to ECC.

The nominal value of each share held in an unlisted company is Rs.10 per share as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020,
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8.4.3

8.4.3.1

8.4.3.2

Non government debt securities

Listed

A

CCC and below
Unrated

Unlisted
AA+
At

A

As

AA-
Unrated

Equity securities

Listed
Habib Bank Limited
MCB Bank Limited
United Bank Limited
Bank Alfalah Limited
The Bank of Punjab
Pakistan Stock Exchange
Agritech Limited
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited
Engro Corporation Limited
Engro Fertilizers Limited
Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited
Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited
Adamjee Insurance Company Limited
IGI holdings Limited
Atlas Insurance Limited
Treet Corporation Limited
The Organic Meat Company Limitcd
Gul Alimed Textile Mills Limited
Nishat Mills Limited
Lalpir Power Limited
Agha Steel Industrics Limited
Pakistan Petroleum Limited
Pakistan State Ol
Sui Southern Gas Company Limited
Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Ltd
Waves Singer Pakistan Limited
Meezan Bank Limited
Arif Habib Limited
Nimir Resins Limited
Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited
Pak Suzuki Motor Co. Limited
Attock Cement Pakistan Limited
DG Khan Cement Co, Limited
Pak Elektron Limited
GlaxoSmithkline Pakistan Limited
Interloop Limited
Hub Power Co. Limited
Kot Addu Power Co. Limited
International Industries Limited
Al Shaheer Carporation Limited
International Steel Limited
0il & Gas Development Co, Limited

21 ) PAK-LIBEYA HOLDING COMPANY(PRIVATE) LIMITED

l Cost J

2021 2020
---=-= (Rupees in "000) ------=
331,287 446,333
398,580 398,580
22,387 22,387
752,253 867,300
200,000 231,250
118,590 237,220
778,175 635,000
189,758 189,814
220,000 220,000
310,163 310,163
1,816,686 1,823,447
2,568,938 2,690,747
26,838 40,257
85,285 77,573
14,241 17,871
62,380 62,380
16,580 16,580
5,092 -
139,527 266,766
141,197 141,197
& 24,619
- 73,528
45,551 42,025
87,265 87,265
32,095 17,469
19,981 19,981
. 20,093
- 17,400
8,070 13,986
- 39,812
28,121 40,952
- 25,012
18,397 11,507
50,484 36,214
70,653 11,052
4,713 4,773
25,031 25,031
13,997 11,893
28,294 -
12,923 -
5,810 -
22,560 .
11,856 -
18,323 -
30,325 -
11,578 -
4,232 -
30,255 -
61,722 -
25,310 -
24,661 -
20,352 -
15,795 -
48,072 -
1,267,624 1,175,236
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Cost
2021 2020
Unlisted T caeeeas (Rupees in '000) —-----
Agro Dairies Limited 2,301 I 2,301
Pakistan Textile City Limited | 50,000 50,000
52,301 52,301

1,319,925 1,227,537

Foreign sccurities
The Company does not have any investment in foreign securities (31 December 2020: Nil),
Cost
2021 2020
----- - (Rupees in '000) --—---

Particulars relating to held fo mniurity’securlﬁés are as follows:

Federal government securifies - government guaranteed
Market treasury bills
Pakistan investment bonds
Sukuk
Others

Provincial government securities - government guaranteed
The Company does not have any investment in provincial government guaranteed securities (31 December 2020: Nil)

Cost
Note 2021 2020

Non government debt seeurities e (Rupees in '000) -------

Listed
- AAA - . 7
- AA+, AA, AA- - -
- At A, A- - s
- BBB+, BBB, BBB- = -
-BB+, BB, BB- a "
-B+ B, B- . "
- CCC and below ) - -
- Unrated - 5
Unlisted
A+ 150,000 -
A 69,137 68,376
Unrated 6,366 6,366
215,502 74,742

ber 2021 is approxi to their fair valucs due to the

The carrying value of securities classified as held-to-maturity as at 31 D
shorter tenor of these securities.

Forcign securities
The Company daes not have any foreign debt investment during the year 2021 (31 December 2020 Nil).
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ADVANCES
Note I Performing I l Non Performing ] I Total I
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
{Rupees in '000)

Loans 4,702,447 4,259,574 965,673 1,266,807 5,668,120 5,526,381
Nel investment in finance lease 9.1 248,206~ 322,717 146,938 146,938 395,144 469,655
Staff loans 143,243 145,087 3 = 143,243 145,087
Consumer loans and advances 4,183 2,309 33,263 38,014 37,446 40,323
Long-term financing of export oriented projects (LTF-EOP) - - 60,179 60,179 60,179 60,179
Long-term financing facility (LTFF) 396,539 318,830 - - 396,539 318,830
Refinance scheme for payment of wages & salaries 300,098 506,666 = - 300,098 506,666
Temporary economic relief facility (TERF) 459,269 56,816 - - 459,269 56,816
Advances - gross 6,253,985 5,611,999 1,206,053 1,511,939 7,460,038 7,123,938

Provision against advances

- Specific 9.4 - - 1,147,510 1,449,884 1,147,510 1,449,884

- General - - 53 46 53 46

- - 1,147,563 1,449,930 1,147,563 1,449,930

Advances - net of provision 6,253,985 5,611,999 58,490 62,009 6,312,475 - 5,674,009
S

Net investment in finance lease as disclosed below:

[ ; 2021 1] 2020 |
(Rupecs in '000)
Lterdvan Later than one
Not later one and less Over five Mot later than Over five
Total and less than Total
than one year than five years one year years
five years
years

Lease rentals receivable 321,522 88,803 ) 410,325 335,597 158,552 = 494,149
Residual value 58,532 19,150 - 77,682 58,532 19,150 - 77,682
Minimum lease payments 380,054 107,953 - 488,007 394,129 177,702 - 571,831
Financial charges for future periods 36,358 6,505 - 92,863 91,421 10,755 - 102,176
86,358 6,505 - 92,863 91,421 10,755 - 102,176

Present value of minimum - - - - - - - -
lease payments 293,696 101,448 - 395,144 302,708 166,947 - 469,655

The Company has cniered into lease agreements with various companies for lease of vehicles and plant and machinery. The amounts recoverable under these arrangements are
receivable by the year 2024 and carry mark-up at rates ranging between 10,16 to 14.74 (31 December 2020: 9.19 to 16.57) percent per annum. In respect of the
aforementioned finance leases, the Company holds an aggregate sum of Rs.77.682 million (31 December 2020: Rs.77.682 million) as security deposits on behalf of the lessees

which are included under ‘other liabilities'.

2021 2020

---- (Rupees in '000) ----
7,460,038 7,123,938

Particulars of ndvances (Gross)
In local currency

In foreign currency
7,460,038 7,123,938
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Advances include Rs.1,206.05 million (31 December 2020: Rs.1,511.94 million) which have been placed under non-performing status as detailed

below:-

Category of classification

Domestic

Other Assets Especially Mentioned
Substandard

Doubtful

Loss

Total

Overseas

2021 2020
Non Non
Performing Provision Performing Provision
Loans Loans
---------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------=-
- - 764 .
- - 3,018 755
23 12 992 497
1,206,030 1,147,498 1,507,164 1,448,632
1,206,053 1,147,509 1,511,939 1,449,884

The Company does not have any overseas advances as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: Nil).

Particulars of provision against advances

| 2021 [ 2020 |
Specific General Total Specific General Total
(Rupees in '000)
Opening balance 1,449,884 46 1,449,930 1,502,343 105 1,502,448
Charge for the year 12 7 19 © 2284 Y 2,284
Less: Reversal during the year (20,193) - (20,193) (54,743) (58) (54,801)
Net (reversal) for the year (20,181) 7 (20,174) (52,459) (58) (52,517)
Less: Amounts written off (282,193) - (282,193) - - =
Closing balance 1,147,510 53 1,147,563 1,449,884 46 1,449,930
Particulars of provision against advances
In local currency 1,147,510 53 1,147,563 1,449,884 46 1,449,930
In foreign currency - - - - - -
1,147,510 53 1,147,563 1,449,884 46 1,449,930

The provision against non-performing advances includes an impact of Forced Sale Value (FSV) benefit amounting to Rs.Nil (31 December 2020:
Nil) in respect of consumer financing and Rs. million (31 December 2020: Rs.58.532 million) being security deposit in respect of lease
financing. The FSV benefit recognised under the Prudential Regulations is not available for the distribution of cash or stock dividend to the

" shareholders. Further, SBP through its letter no. OSED/SEU-05/041(01)-12/2218/2012 dated 26 December 2012 had stipulated that no dividend,

cash or kind, shall be paid out of the benefits realised through (he relaxations allowed therein.

General provision against consumer finance loans represents provision made equal to 1.5% of the fully secured performing portfolio and 5% of
the unsccured performing portfolio as required by the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP for Consumer Financing.

PARTICULARS OF WRITE OFFs:

Against provisions
Directly charged to profit & loss account

Write offs of Rs. 500,000 and above
- Domestic

- Overseas
Write offs of below Rs. 500,000

Details of loans written off of Rs.500,000 and above (refer Annexure I)

Note | 2021 || 2020 |
---- (Rupees in '000) ----

9.4 282,193 .
282,193 .
9.6
282,193 =
282,193 2

In terms of sub-section (3) of Section 33A of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the statement in respect of written-off loans or any other
financial relief of five hundred thousand rupees and above allowed to a person(s) during the year ended 31 December 2021 is given in Annexure

I
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10.1

10.2

FIXED ASSETS

Capital work-in-progress
Property and equipment

Capital work-in-progress

25

The Company has no capital work-in-progress as at yearend (31 December 2020: Rs.1.35 million).

Property and equipment

At 1 January 2021

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net book value

Year ended December 2021
Opening net book value
Additions
Movement in surplus on assets revalued during the year
Acquisitions through business combinations
Impairment loss recognised in the
profit and loss account - net
Disposals
Depreciation charge
Exchange rate adjustments
Other adjustments / transfers
Closing net book value

At 31 December 2021
Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net bock value

Rate of depreciation (percentage)

PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY(PRIVATE) LIMITED

Note © 2021 2020
-— (Rupees in '000) —

10.1 - 1,350

10.2 96,472 96,463

96,472 97,813

2021
e Building on i Electrical,
Freehold | Leasehold | Building on Bslidug o Lease hold land Tk office and . Vehicles
Lease hold i and fixture Vehicles Total
land land Freehold land (Residence) computer (10.2.7)
land (Office) .
(10.2.7) equipment
Rupees '000

- 1,952 - 88,432 11,363 50,382 47,612 19,580 88,656 307,976
- (668) - (55,539) (10,683) (43,962) (38,160) (16,403) (46,096) (211,513)
- 1,283 - 32.893 679 6,419 9.452 3,176 42,561 96,463
- 1,283 - 32,893 679 6,419 9,452 3,176 42,561 96,463
- - - - - 13,519 5,008 15,404 - 33,931
2 @2 . (2,656) (104) (2,948) (3,421) (3,889) (22,232) (35,272)
r - 4 4 2 1,350 . . - 1,350
- 1.261 - 30,237 575 18,340 11,039 14,691 20,329 96,472

- 1,952 - 88,432 11,363 65,251 52,620 34,984 88,656 343,257
. (690) = (58,195) (10,787) (46,910) (41,581)  (20,292) (68,328) (246,785)

- 1,261 - 30,237 575 18,340 11,039 14,691 20,329 96,472

1.11% 5% 5% 15%-25% 10%-30% 25% 33.33%
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10.2.2
10.23
10.2.4

10.2.5
10.2.6
10.2.7

26 PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY(PRIVATE) LIMITED

2020
Building on
Pronticld | Teaseheld | Bulltnsion Building on | Lease hold |Furniture and]Electrical, office . Vehicles
tand ond Free hold land Lease hold land fixture and computer | Vehicles (1027 Total
land (Office)| (Residence) equipment Lt
(10.2.7)
Rupees '000
At 1 January 2020
Cost - 1,952 - 88,432 11,363 49,285 40,179 19,337 55,496 266,044
- Accumulated depreciation : (647) = (52,871) (10,575)  (41,356) (35206)  (14347)  (23,888)  (178,889)
Net book value - 1,305 - 35,561 788 7,929 4.973 4,991 31,608 87,154
Year ended December 2020
Opening net book value - 1,305 - 35,561 788 7,929 4,973 4,991 31,608 87,155
Additions - - - = - 1,097 7,433 242 33,160 41,932

Movement in surplus on assets revalued during the year - - - -
Acquisitions through business combinations e " =
Impairment loss recognised in the

profit and loss account - net = - -
Disposals ' - - e

- - 5 E (74) (1,830) (1,904)
Depreciation charge - (22) - (2.668) (109) (2,606) (2,954) (1,983) (20,378) (30,720)
Exchange rate adjustments - 5 =

Other adjustments / transfers = 5 =

Closing net book value - 1,283 - 32,893 679 6,419 9,452 3.176 42,561 96,463
At 31 December 2020

Cost - 1,952 - 88,432 11,363 50,382 47,612 19,580 88,656 307,976
Accumulated depreciation - (668) - (55,539) (10,683) (43,962) (38,160) (16,403) (46,096)  (211,513)
Net book value - 1,283 - 32,893 679 6,419 9,452 3,176 42,561 96,463
Rate of depreciation (percentage) 1.11% 5% 5%  15%-25% 10%-30% 25% 33.33%

Assets shown above in fixed assets do not include any items under finance lease arrangement (31 December 2020: Nil).

Assets shown above in fixed assets do not include any items which have been revalued (31 December 2020: Nil).

Furniture and fixture includes house hold furnishing items provided to employees (SVP and above) under the human resource policies of the Company.
During the year, following items have been disposed off to related parties of the Company:

Particulars
Accumulated Net book Sale Mode of of
Description ~ Cost depreciation value proceeds disposal . purchaser
S - 17T TR 111)) P ——

Key Management Personnel
Furniture and fixtures 1,687 1,687 - -
House hold furnishing items 222 222 - - Company Policy Atif Mahmud**
House hold furnishing items 428 428 - - Company Policy Syed Ghazanfar Ali**
House hold furnishing items 632 632 - - Company Policy Muhammad Ali Yaqoob**
House hold furnishing items 182 182 - - Company Policy Muhammad Mukhatar-ul-Hag**
House hold furnishing items 223 223 -

- Company Policy Nasim Ahmed Khan**
** These are related parties of the Company.
The transfer of title to leasehold land and building thereon in respect of the Company's premises at the Finance and Trade Centre, Karachi in favour of the Company is pending.

Assets having cost of Rs. 103.018 million (31 December 2020: Rs.100.946 million) are fully depreciated, however, these assets are still in use.
The Managing Director (MD) and Deputy Managing Director (DMD) are entitled for the fully furnished accomodation and company maintained cars as per their terms of appointment.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At 1 January 2021

Cost "
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net book value

Year ended December 2021
Opening net book value
Additions:

- developed internally

- directly purchased

- through business combinations

Impairment loss recognised in the profit and loss account - net
Disposals

Amortisation charge

Exchange rate adjustments

Other adjustments

Closing net book value

At 31 December 2021

Cost

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net book value

Rate of amartisation (percentage)

Useful life

At 1 January 2020

Cost

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Net book value

Year ended December 2020
Opening net book value
Additions:

- developed internally

B W isitions / purchased

~ i o Gt combi

Impainment loss recognised in the profit and loss account - net
Disposals

Amortisation charge

Exchange rate adjustments

Other adjustments

Closing net book value

At 31 December 2020

Cost

Accumulated amortisation and impainnent
Net book value

Rate of amortisation (percentage)

Useful life

2 PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY(PRIVATE) LIMITED

2021
Computer Oth Total
software sl ota)
---- (Rupees in '000) ----
8,935 - 8,935
6,971 & 6,971
1,964 - 1,964
1,964 - 1,964
84 * 84
84 - 84
(1,075) E (1,075)
973 - 973
9,019 - 9,019
8,046 - 8,046
973 - 973
20% - 20%
5 = §
2020
Congatcr Others Total
software
=== {(Rupees in '000) ----
8,935 - 8,935
5,745 - 5,745
3,190 - 3,190
3,190 - 3,190
(1,226) - (1,226)
1,964 = 1,964
8,935 - 8,935
6,971 - 6,971
1,964 - 1,964
20% - 20%
5 - 5

Intangible assets having cost of Rs.1.407 million (31 December 2020: Rs.1.407 million) are fully depreciated, however, these intangible assets are

still in use.
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DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Deductible temporary differences on

- Tax losses carried forward

- Post retirement employee benefits

- Deficit on revaluation of investments
- Accelerated tax depreciation

- Provision against advances, off balance sheet ¢tc.

- Net investment in finance lease

Taxable temporary differences on

- Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets
- Surplus on revaluation of investments
- Accelerated tax depreciation

- Net investment in finance lease

Deductible temporary differences on

- Tax losses carried forward

- Post retirement employee benefits

- Deficit on revaluation of investments
- Accelerated tax depreciation

- Provision against advances, off balance sheet etc.

- Net Investment in finance lease

Taxable remporary differences on

- Surplus on revaluation of fixed assels
- Surplus on revaluation of investments
- Accelerated tax depreciation

- Net [nvestment in finance lease

28 PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY(PRIVATE) LIMITED

| 2021 B
Recognised in ~ Recognised in At 31 Dec
AN T st oc1 2020
—memmemessessnmeeemeeeen (Rupees in '000)
5,828 714 - 6,542
125,637 (63) 230,395 355,969
(1,705) (2,436) B (4,141)
71,568 - - 71,568
(18,022) 16,880 - (1,142)
189,306 15,095 230,395 434,796
189,306 15,095 230,395 434,796
[ 2020 |

At 1 Jan 2020

Recognised in

Recognised in

At 31 Dec 2020

P&L Ale 0CI
-------------------------- (Rupees in '000)
4,876 952 - 5,828
15,895 2 109,740 125,637
(51) (1,654) - (1,705)
77,568 - - 71,568
(45,762) 27,740 . - (18,022)
52,526 27,040 109,740 189,306
52,526 27,040 109,740 189,306

As at 31 December 2021, the Company has available provision for advances, investments and other assets amounting to Rs.1,430.38 million
(31 December 2020: Rs.1,731.52 million) and unused tax losses upto 31 December 2021 amounting to nil (31 December 2020: Rs.265.640
million). However, the management has prudently recognised the deferred tax asset, if any, only to the extent given above based on the
absorption / admissibility of the same as forecasted in the projections approved by the Board of Directors. Moreover, no deferred tax asset has

been recognised on unused tax losses,
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13.1

13.2

13.2.1

13.2.2

29 PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY(PRIVATE) LIMITED

Note |_

2021 11

2020

|

OTHER ASSETS

-—-- (Rupees in '000) ~~--

Income / mark-up accrued in local currency-net of provision 827,678 844,071
Advances, deposit, advance rent and other prepayments 29,181 38,740
Advance taxation (payments less provisions) 832,653 546,357
Staff refirement gratuity - asset / (liability) 21.1 &39.7 2,582 10,683
Other receivables 8,401 8,516

1,700,495 1,448,367
Less: provision held against other assets 133 (58,407) (38,186)
Other assets - (net of provison) 1,642,088 1,410,181
Non-banking assefs acquired in satisfaction of claims - held for sale 13.2.1 814,645 1,179,360
Surplus on revalution of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims - -

814,645 1,179,360
Market value of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims has been disclosed in note 13.2.1 & note 42.2,
| 2021 11 2020 ]

Non-banling assets acquired in satisfaction of claims - held for sale ---- (Rupees in '000) ----
Opening balance 1,179,360 1,179,360
Additions - -
Revaluation - -
Disposals - -
Depreciation o %
Impairment/provision (refer note 42.2) (364,715) -
Closing balance 814,645 1,179,360

This includes non-banking assets acquired under satisfaction of claim in relation to KEL’s exposure. These assets comprise of land measuring
14.125 acre, building structure and power plant. The project is situated at Kamoki, District Gujranwala, Punjab, Pakistan.

Considering the stralegic importance of KEL, consequent 1o transfer of the said assets in Company's name the management presented a
Management Plan, highlighting all aspects, regarding the Power Project Assets to the Board of Directors. In continuation to the efforts made
for the disposal, management appointed M/s. Igbal A, Nanjee for a new valuation as at 31 December 2019. As per the new valuation the
assessed value of these asscts were Rs.2.531 billion (31 December 2020: Rs.2.531 billion) whilst forced sale value was Rs.1.570 billion (31
December 2020: Rs.1.570 billion). However, the surplus on revaluation on the non-banking assets has not been recorded in these financial

statements on prudent basis.

Gain / luss on disposal of non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims |

2021 1

2020

Disposal proceeds
less

e (llupges in '000) -~~~

- Cost
- Impairment / depreciation

Gain/loss
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30 PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY(PRIVATE) LIMITED

Note L2021 ][ 2000 ]
---- (Rupees in '000) ----

3 Provision held against other assets
Advances, deposits, advance rent & other prepayments 58,407 38,186
Non banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 42.2 364,715 -
Others = -
423,122 38,186
3.1 Movement in provision held against other assets
Opening balance 38,186 38,186
Charge for the period / year 22,459 -
Reversals (2,238) -
Amount written of{/ (recovered) . ”
Closing balance 58,407 38,186
CONTINGENT ASSETS
The Company does not have any contingent assets as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: Nil).
BILL PAYABLE
The Company does ot have any bills payable as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: Nil),
BORROWINGS
Secured
Borrowings from State Bank of Pakistan under:
Long-term financing facility (LTFF) 16.1 257,644 318,723
Refinance scheme for payment of wages & salaries 16.1 345,630 506,666
Temporary economic relief facility (TERF) 16.1 541,182 41,138
Repurchase agreement borrowings - Repo 16.2 21,907,795 17,885,000
Borrowings from financial institutions 16.3 6,353,167 || 5,199,000

29,405,418 23,950,528

Total secured

Unsecured

Clean bomrowings 744,000 1,596,000
Bai Muajjal 16.4 - 845,427

30,149,418 26,391,955

16.1 This includes borrowings from State Bank of Pakistan as under:

(a) The Company has entered into agreements for financing with State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) for long.term financing facility (LTFF) to customers.
According to terms of respective agreements, SBP has the right to receive outstandi t from the Company at the date of maturity of finances
by directly debiting current intained by the Company with the SBP, Such financing shall carry interest at the rate of 2.0 to 2.5 (31

December 2020: 2.0 to 2.5) percent per annum,

(b) The Company has entered into age for fi ing with State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) for refinance scheme for payment of wages & salarics to
customers. According to terms of respective agreements, SBP has the right to receive outstanding amount from the Company at the date of maturity
of finances by directly debiting current intained by the Company with the SBP. Such financing carry Nil (31 December 2020: nil)

percent per annum interest for all types of eligible borrowers that are on active tax payer list.

(c) The Company has entered into agrecments for financing with State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) for temporary economic relief facility (TERF).
According to terms of respective agreements, SBP has the right to receive outstanding amount from the Company at the date of maturity of finances
by dircctly debiting current account maintained by the Company with the SBP. Such financing carry 1.0 (31 December 2020: 1.0) percent per

annum.

16.2 The Company has aranged borrowings from various financial institutions against sale and repurchase of Governinent Sccurities, The outstanding
facilities as at statement of financial position date are due for maturity on various dates latest by 7 January 2022 (31 December 2020: 18 January
2021). The rate of mark-up on these facilities range from 10.05 to 10.75 (31 December 2020: 6.92 to 7.20) percent per annum.

16.3 This includes borrowings from financial institutions as under:

(a) Rs.6,154.17 million (31 December 2020: Rs.5,000.00 million) representing long tenn borrowings from certain financial institutions which are
secured by way of first hypothecation charge over asscts of the Company with 30 percent margin on the facility amount, They carry a mark-up rate
of six months' KIBOR plus 0.25 percent to 0.50 percent per annum payable on semi-annual basis (2020 six months KIBOR plus 0.25 percent to 0.50
percent per annum payable on semi-annual basis), As at 31 December 2021, the applicable interest rates were 7.84 to 11,77 (31 December 2020:
7.13 to 7.85) percent per annum. These bomrowings are due for maturity latest by December 2024 (31 December 2020: December 2023).

(b) This represents short tenn borrowings (running finance) amounting to Rs, 199 million (31 December 2020: Rs.199 million) from certain financial
institutions for the period ranging from overnight to 12 months, They carry mark-up rate of three months KIBOR plus 0.75 (31 December 2020:
three months KIBOR plus 0.75) percent per annum. The borrowing is secured by way of hypothecation on all present and future assets of the

Company with 30 percent margin,

16.4 This represents financing through unsecured Bai Muajjal from a financial institution due for repayment latest by nil (31 December 2020: 22 February
2021). The rate of mark-up en this facility is nil (31 December 2020: 7.4) percent per annum,
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31 PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY(PRIVATE) LIMITED

[20m ][ 2020 ]

Particulars of borrowings with respect to currencies «=== (Rupees in "000) ----
In local currency 30,149,418 26,391,955
In foreign currency a -
30,149,418 26,391,955
DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS
| 2021 I 2020 |
In local In foreign In local In foreign
currency currency Sl currency currency Toin)
Rupees in '000
Customers
Certificate of Investment 4,576,353 - 4,576,353 4,042,892 - 4,042,892
Term deposits - - - - - -
Others - - - - - -
4,576,353 F 4,576,353 4,042,392 = 4,042,892
Financial Institutions
Certificate of Investment - - - - - -
Term deposits - - - - - -
Others - - - - - -
4,576,353 - 4,576,353 4,042,892 - 4,042,892

The profit rates on these Certificates of Investment (COIs) range from 765 to 11.70 (31 December 2020; 7.00 to 13.26) percent per annum.

These COls are due for maturity on various dates latest by 29 June 2022 (31 December 2020: 17 December 2021).

| 2021 Il 2020 |

---- (Rupees in '000) ----

Composition of deposits

- Individuals 70,922 46,000

- Government (Federal and Provincial) 2,911,761 2,878,756

- Public sector entities 5 :

- Banking companies = a

- Non-banking financial institutions . 3

- Private sector 1,593,670 1,118,136
4,576,353 4,042 892

This includes deposits amounting to nil eligible to be covered under insurance arrangements (31 December 2020: Nil).

LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE
The Company does not have any liabilities subject to lease finance as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: Nil)

SUBORDINATED DEBT :
The Company does not have any subordinated debt as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020 Nil)

DEFERED TAX LIABILITIES
The deferred tax liabilities have been considered in note 12, since a net deferred tax asset amount has been disclosed.
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OTHER LIABILITIES Note | 2021 || 2020 |
=== (Rupees in '000) -—
Mark-up/ Return/ Interest payable in local currency 104,271 123,457
Accrued expenses 103,284 148,462
Advance payments 12,024 27,339

Current taxation (provisions less payments) = .
Unclaimed dividends -

Dividends payable ) - -
Mark to market loss on forward forcign exchange contracts ) - -
Employees' compensated absences 21.1 23,312 20,095
Charity fund balance - -
Provision against off-balance shect obligations - -
Security deposits against lease 77,682 71,682
Provision against contingencies 212 - 215,000
Other . - 514

320,573 612,550

This is based on actuarial valuation carried out as of 31 December 2021 for regular employees and MD & DMD of the Company.

Movement in provision held against other assets Nofte [ 2021 il 2020 |
=== (Rupees in '000) ----
Opening balance : 331 215,000 -
Addition during the year - 215,000
Reversal/utilised during the year (215,000) -
Closing balance : - 215,000

Provision against off-balance sheet obligations
The Company does not have any provision against off-balance sheet obligations.

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized Share Capital

2021 2020
Number of shares

1,000,000 1,000,000  Ordinary shares of Rs.10,000 each 10,000,000 10,000,000

22.2 Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

22.3

23

2021 2020
Number of shares
Ordinary shares
671,836 644,836  Tully paid in cash 6,718,360 6,448,360
142,342 142,342  Issued as bonus shares 1,423,420 1,423,420
814,178 787,178 8,141,780 7,871,780

Government of Pakistan and State of Libya hold 407,089 each (2020; 393,589 each) ordinary shares of the Company through their
representatives (MoF/SBP and LAFICO) as at 31 December 2021,

[ 2021 || 2020 |

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS ---- (Rupees in '000) ----
Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of
- Available for sale securities

- Fixed Assets
- Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

(1,203,330) (407,198)

(1,203,330) (407,198)

Deferred tax on surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of:

- Available for sale securities . 355,969 125,574

- Fixed Assets - <

- Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims - =
355,969 125,574

(847,361) (281,624)
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Note | 2021 || 2020 |

--=- (Rupees in '000) ----

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

-Guarantees 24.1 873,460 870,743
-Commitments 242 3,631,323 2,475,708
-Other contingent liabilities 243 348,141 213,227
4,852,924 3,559,678
Guarantees:
Financial guarantees : 24.1.1 841,120 841,120
Performance guarantces 24.1.1 32,340 29,623
Other guarantees - -
873,460 870,743

This represents the guarantees issued on behalf of KEL, a joint venture. During the year 2012, a decision was announced by the
Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (Court), in which all contracts of RPPs were declared to be illegal and void ab initio and as a
result of which the guarantee remained inoperative. Consequently, there cannot be any exposure of the Company under the same.

Note | 2021 || 2020 1]
-=-~ (Rupees in '000) ----

Commitments: ;
Documentary credits and short-term trade-related transactions
- letters of credit L 350,000 350,000

Commitments in respect of:
- forward foreign exchange contracts A &
- forward government securities Lransactions o 8

- derivatives

- forward lending
- operating leases

Commitments for acquisition of:

- operating fixed assets - 3,150
- intangible assets 708 708
Other commitments 2422 3,280,615 2,121,850

3,631,323 2,475,708

Commitments in rvespect of forward forcign exchange contract, government securities transactions, derivatives, forward

lending
The Company does not have any commitment in respect to foreign exchange contract, government securities transactions, erivates

and forward lending as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: Nil).

I 201 | 2020 |
~=== (Rupees in '000) ----

Other commitments
Commitments to extend credit 3,279,190 2,087,891
Unsettled investment transactions for sale / purchase of listed ordinary shares - 32,534

Commitinents against other services 1,425 1,425
3,280,615 2,121,850

Other contingent liabilities

In financial year 2014, the Company received the appeal effect orders with respect to the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR)
orders dated 20 February 2013 in relation to tax years 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2008 where the outcome was in favour of the Company
in relation to issues of loans and advances written-off, apportionment of expenditure and loans to executives/officers and the
resulting refunds were adjusted against the tax liability for the tax years 2009 and 2010. Based on the decision of ATIR, overall
resulting relief and brought forward losses, there was ‘nil” additional tax liability remaining for tax years 2009 and 2010, In June
2015, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue issued orders under section 221/124 of the ITO for the tax years 2003 to 2010 to
give the appeal effect of the ATIR order. Upon Company’s rectification application, a rectified order was issued which resulted in a
refund of Rs.122.777 million in tax year 2010. The Tax depariment has filed the references before Honorable High Court of Sindh

against the order of ATIR,
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Other contingent liahilities

For the tax year 2011, Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) vide order dated 30 August, 2013 passed under section 122(1) read with section 177 of
Income Tax Ordinance (1TO) issued the amended assessment order and raised a demand of Rs.84.392 million. The demand mainly pertains to additions
made for apportionment of expenses to dividend income/capital gains/(losses), disallowance of interest payable on accrual basis, provision for loans and
advances and loss on termination of leased assels ete. The Company filed a refund claim of Rs.70.53 million for the tax year 2011 through a revised tax
return. ‘The Company filed an appeal with Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals on 14 October 2013. The CIR (A) disposed the appeal vide his order No.
22 dated 26 December 2016. [n relation to the said appeal, CIR (A) confirmed the treatment of DCIR on certain issues, whilst few matters were decided in
favour of the Company. Therefore, an appeal before ATIR fo contest various treatments adopied in the above mentioned order issued by CIR(A) has been
filed in addition to a rectification application on 02 March 2017, The appeal is pending before ATIR and has not been fixed yel.

For (he tax year 2013, the Company received a tax demand of Rs.24.3 million on 11 November 2014 vide order under section 122 (5A) of the I'TO. Against
this order, rectification application was filed vide letter T-2798/2012 dated 12 December 2014 wherein it has been highlighted that the issue of
apportionment of expenditure against dividend income and capital gain has been decided in favour of the Company by ATIR. Also, the Tax department did
not consider the payment of tax of Rs.13.47 million. In June 2015, a rectification order under section 221 of the ITO was passed by the Additional
Commissioner Inland Revenue to give effect of apportionment of financial charges and tax credits. Consequently the tax department revised its tax demand
and reduced it to Rs.13.198 million. The Company filed an appeal with Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals (CIRA) on 22 December 2014, The CIR (A)
disposed the appeal vides his order No. 23 dated 26 December 2016. In relation to the said appeal, the CIR (A) confirmed the treatment of the ACIR on
certain issues whilst few matters were decided in favour of the Company. Therefore, an appeal before ATIR to contest various treatments adopted in the
above mentioned order issued by CIR(A) has been [iled in addition to a rectification application on 02 March 2017, The appeal is pending before ATIR and
has not been fixed yet.

For the tax year 2014, the ACIR passed an order wherein tax demand of Rs.57.866 million was raised, disallowing the provision for non-performing loan
and advances, apportionment of financial and administrative expenses against dividend income and capital gain, penalty imposed by the State Bank of
Pakistan, treated the expenditure incurred on privately placed TFCs us capital expenditure and charged WWF. The Company filed an appeal with
Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals (CIRA) on 22 November 2016, The CIR (A) disposed the appeal vides his order No. 13 dated 16 January 2017. In
relation o the said appeal, the CIR (A) confirmed the (reatment of the ACIR on certain issues whilst few matters were decided in favour of the Company,
Therefore, an appeal before ATIR to contest various treatments adopted in the above mentioned order issued by CIR(A) has been filed on 02 March 2017.
The appeal is pending before ATIR and has not been fixed yet.

For the tax year 2015, the ADCIR passed an order wherein tax demand of Rs.46.669 million was raised, disallowing the provision for non-performing
advances, wiite off against KSE-TREC and loss on sale of non-banking assets, apportioned the financial and administrative expenses against dividend
income and capital gain, disallowed penalty imposed by the State Bank of Pakistan and treated the expenditure incurred on privately placed TFCs as capital
expenditure, whilst treatment on cerfain matters were decided in favour of the Company.Therefore, an appeal before CIR(A), to contest various treatments
adopted in the above mentioned order issued by ADCIR, has been filed on 16 April 2019. The appeal has been heard and the order is pending.

For the tax year 2016, the ADCIR passed an order u/s 122(5A) wherein tax demand of Rs, 102,965 million was raised, disnllo}ing the provision against nan
performing advances, loss on sale of non-banking assels, expenses for privately placed TFCs and the penalty imposed by the State Bank of Pakistan.
Further, ADCIR allocaled the expenditure on gross receipts basis to capital gain and dividend income. Therefore, an appeal before CIR(A), to contest the
various adverse treatments adopted in the above mentioned order issued by ADCIR, has been filed on 25 March 2021. The appeal has been heard and the
order is pending.

For the tax year 2017, the DCIR passed an order under section 122(1)/ (5) of the Ordinance on September 30, 2019. As a result, there is no change in the tax
liability, however, loss declared as per retumn Rs.611.559 million reduced to Rs.133.227 million. In the order passed, DCIR disallowed the provision for non-
performing advances, apportioned the financial and administrative expenses against dividend income and capital gain, disallowed board meeling expenses
and treated expenditure incurred on privately placed TFCs as capital expenditure. Therefore, an appeal before CIR(A), to conlest the various treatments
ndopted in the above mentioned order was filed. The CIR(A) vide his order No, 29 dated 27-01-2021, confirmed the treatment of the DCIR on certain
issues whilst few matters were decided in favour of the Company. Therefore, an appeal before ATIR to contest various treatments of the DCIR upheld by
CIR(A) has been filed on 31 March 2021 before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Karachi (ATIR), The appeal is pending before ATIR and has nol
been fixed yet.

For the tax year 2018, the ADCIR passed an order w/s 122(5A) wherein tax demand of Rs. 31.948 million was raised disallowing the provision against non
performing advances, provision against other assets, other charges-KEL, expenses for privately placed TECs and the penalty imposed by the State Bank of
Pakistan. Further, ADCIR allocated the expenditure on gross receipts basis to capital gain and dividend income. Therefore, an appeal before CIR(A), to
contest various adverse treatments adopted in the above mentioned order issued by ADCIR, has been filed on 25 March 2021. Appeal is pending. Further,
rectification application has been filed vide our letter T-1079/202] dated April 01, 2021. After due rectification the outstanding demand will be eliminated
and there will be a refund of Rs. 23.021 million.

Mo provision has been made in these financial statements in respect of above tioned matters as the manag it is hopeful of a favourable outcome on
these matters considering the appellate history and tax advisor's opinion.

The Company, through its lawyer, has challenged in Sindh High Court (SHC) section 2(g)(V), 5(3), 5(4) and 6(1) of the Sindh Workers Welfare Fund Act,
2014 to be unlawful and void ab initio. The Court as an interim measure passed the order that no coercive action shall be taken against the Company till
next date of hearing as suit No 610/2017, in which almost 20 Financial Institutions have filed a Compaosite Suit challenging the same law, requires hearing.

Al period end, the outcome was still pending. :
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DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY(PRIVATE) LIMITED

The Company did not enter into any interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and foreign exchange options during the year

(31 December 2020: Nil)

MARK-UP/RETURN/INTEREST EARNED
loans and advances

Investments

Lendings to financial institutions

Balance with banks

Others

MARK-UP/RETURN/INTEREST EXPENSED

Deposits

Borrowings

Subordinated debt

Cost of foreigt y swaps against foreign currenty deposits/ borrowings

FEE & COMMISSION INCOME
Branch banking customer fees
Consumer finance related fees

Card related fees (debit and credit cards)
Credit related fees

Investment banking fees

Commission on trade

Comimission on guarantees

Commission on cash management
Commission on remittances including home remittances
Commission on | ance

Others

GAIN/(LOSS) ON SECURITIES - NET
Realised
Unrealised-held for trading

29.1

Realised gain on:

Federal government securilies
Shares

Non-government debt securities
Associales

Subsidiaries

Others

OTHER INCOME

Rent on property

Gain on sale of operating fixed assels

Gain on sale of non-banking assets - net

Bank charges on consumer and SME-RBD portfolio
Others

Note | 2021 || 200 |
== (Rupees in '000) --—-
511,025 530,525
2,125,531 2,368,029
314,232 . 306,692
6,810 3711
2,957,598 3,208,957
368,283 200,104
1,983,366 2,296,334
2,351,649 2,496,438
10,848 10,234
4,949 4,949
15,797 15,183
(79,711) r 429,321
- (412)
(79,711) 428,909
(3,924) 426,290
(75,787) 3,555
. (524)
(79,711) 429,321
1,104 3,512
10,325 544
- 14
2,629 ik
14,058 4,070




31

36

OI’ERATIP{G EXPENSES
Total compensation expense

Property expense

Rent and taxes

Insurance

Utilities cost

Security (including guards)

Repair and maintenance (including janitorial charges)
Depreciation

Others

Information technology expenses
Soflware maintenance

Hardware maintenance
Depreciation

Amortisation

Network charges

BCP expense

Other operating expenses

Directors' fees and allowances

Fees and allowances to Shariah Board

Legal and professional charges

Outsourced services costs *

Travelling and conveyance

NIFT clearing charges

Depreciation

Training and development

Postage and courier charges

Communication

Head office / regional office expenses
(only for branches of foreign banks operating in Pakistan )

Stationery and printing

Marketing, advertisement & publicity

Donations

Auditors' remuneration

Board meeting expenses

Meal and business networking expenses

Canteen expenses

Liveries and uniform

Hajj expense

Bank charges

Miscellaneous expenses

Note

312
313

PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY(PRIVATE) LIMITED

2021

2020

---= (Rupees in '000) ----

343,939 426,478
437 235
3,221 3,705
5,421 4,453
1,094 1,072
19,743 16,744
2,782 2,799
32,698 29,009
1,018 2,157
1,367 1,146
2,188 1,814
1,075 1,226
1,345 1,122
731 732
8,625 8,197
16,100 16,472
6,616 12,677
5,497 5,403
4,199 3,907
30,301 26,106
856 538
313 266
4,462 5,134
1,902 2,281
3,364 9,346
3,006 3225
11,548 13,558
980 334
811 702
330 316
919 1,021
414 314

45 45
91,663 95643
476,925 559,328

* All amounts were related to the payment to the outsourcing companies incorporated in Pakistan. These activities were not with

related parties.
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PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY(PRIVATE) LIMITED

Note | 2021 11 2020 |

Total compensation expense

---- (Rupees in "000) ----

Fees and allowances 0
Managerial remuneration
i) Fixed 301,543 297,215
ii) Variable

of which;

a) Cash bonus / awards 2,563 46,543

b) Bonus and awards in shares
Charge for defined benefit plan 39.8.1 12,997 12,297
Contribution to defined contribution plan 8,356 8,587
Rent and house maintenance 4,850 1,856
Utilities 3,811 3,844
Medical 6,838 11,096
Conveyance 1,258 710
Group insurance 171 1,181
Benevolent fund 114 115
EOBI 573 579
Club Membership 265 456
Others - -
Sub-total 343,939 384,478
Sign-on Bonus - -
Severance 3111 - 42,000
Grand Total 343,939 426,478

h /package on 31 D

ber 2020 keeping in view the

The Board of Directors have granted an approval of a si
ised busi strategy already approved in August 2019.

The Company did not make any donation during 2021 (31 December 2020: Nil).

| 2021 1 2020 |

=-== (Rupees in '000) -—-

Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee 1,129 1,119
Fee for other statutory certifications 416 366
Fee for audit of foreign branches (for banks incorporated in Pakistan) - =
Fee for audit of employee funds 3131 - -
Special certifications and sundry advisory services 309 323
Tax services 900 1,160
Qut-of-pocket expenses 251 257

3,005 3,225

The Auditors of the Company are also engaged in the audit of the Pak-Libya Holding Company (Private) Limited - Employees'
Gratuity Fund and Pak-Libya Holding Company (Private) Limited - Bmployees' Provident Fund. However, audit fee for both the
Funds amounting to Rs.88 thousand and was borne by the respective Funds (31 December 2020: Rs. 88 thousand).

OTHER CHARGES

Arrangement fee and documentation charges
Brokerage commission

Expenses for privately placed term {inance certificates
Expenses pertaining to KEL

Penalties imposed by State Bank of Pakistan

1 2021 || 2020 |
---- (Rupees in '000) -—
5,637 229
6,627 8,457
4,345 7,556
- 183
100

Penalties imposed by other regulatory bodies

16,609 16,525
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Note | 2021 I 2020 |
---- (Rupees in '000) -

33 PROVISIONS/(REVERSALS) & WRITE OFFS - NET

Provisions against lending to financial institutions . (2,497) w
Loss on non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 364,715 -
Provisions for diminution in value of investments 8.3.1 (49,400) 17,811
(Reversal)/provisions against loans and advances 9.4 (20,174) (52,518)
(Reversal)/provision against other receivable 22,459 L

Bad debits written off directly & 5
Recovery of written off/charged off bad debts 2

(Reversal)/provision against contingencies 331 (215,000) 21 5,000‘ "
100,102 180,293

33.1 In light of the extraordinary circumstances triggered due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the global economies have been severely
affected and Pakistan was no exception. The banking industry thrives on industrial and economic activities, thercfore, the impact
of the slowdown on business of banks and financial institutions, including Pak Libya, was inevitable. However, the general market
environment remained conducive for Company's business operation despite COVID-19 pandemic. After reduction in policy rate
by 625 bps there has been.no change in interest rates after June 2020. Consequently, after various developments during last 12
months keeping in view the 2nd and 3rd waves of COVID-19 and expiry of relaxation period allowed by SBP for financial relief
under different schemes to vavious customer, the portfolio remained intact. Therefore, the management after review of loans &
advances portfolio considered it appropriate to release a portion of provision in June 2021. Moreover, subsequent to the sudden
sharp increase of 275 bps in policy rate, the management utilised the remaining amount,

Note | 2021 |1 2020 |
34 TAXATION B -—- (Rupees in '000) ~--
Current 58,604 182,876
Prior years (41,985) -
Deferrcd 12 (15,095) (27,041)
1,584 155,835

Due to minimum tax applicable on the Company at fixed rates. Therefore, relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
for the period / year has not been presented,

Note | 2021 1] 2020 I
35 BASIC EARNINGS/HLOSS) PER SHARE ---- (Rupees in '000) --—-
Profit/{loss) for the year 40,883 304,138
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 807,520 686,181
Basic earnings per share (Rupees) 50.6 443.2
36 DILUTED EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
Profit/(loss) for the year 40,883 304,138
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (adjusted )
for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares) 807,520 686,181
Diluted earnings per share (Rupees) 50.6 443.2
37 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Term deposit receipts (TDRs) 37.1 2,700,000 2,350,000
Cash and balance with treasury banks 5 110,575 63,155
Balance with other banks G 197,264 - 82,159
Others - . s
3,007,839 2,495,315

37.1 These term deposit receipts (TDRs) are due for maturity on various dates between January 2022 to March 2022 (31 December
2020: January 2021 to March 2021).

| 2021 11 2020 |
38 STAFF STRENGTH R T R
Permanent 72 73
Temporary / on contractual basis 4 6
Daily wagers 11 11
Bank's own staff strength at the end of the year 87 90
11 14

Outsourced (Third Party)

38,1 In addition to the above no employee (2020: Nil) of outsourcing services companies were assigned to the Company during the
year to perform services other than guarding and janitorial services.
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39 PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY(PRIVATE) LIMITED

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

General description

Pak-Libya Holding Company (Private) Limited - Employees' Gratuity Fund was established for the benefit of all clipible employees of Pak-
Libya Helding Company (Private) Limited through a trust deed dated 01 January 1999. The fund has been approved hy the Commissioner of
Income tax under Rule 1 of Part I1I of the sixth schedule to the repealed Income tax ordinance 1979 to take effect from 01 February 1999.

Number of Employees under the scheme

The number of employees covered under the following defined benefit schemes are;

| 2021 1] 2020 |
eresmnsanans (Number) ----

- Pension fund - -]
- Gratuity fund 75 76
- Other bencfits schemes - -
Principal actuarial assumptions
The actuarial valuations were carried oul as at 31 December 2021 using the following significant assumptions:

J 2021 11 2020 |

=== Per annuim ----------
Discount rate 1175 9,75
Expected rate of return on plan assets 11,75 9:75
Expecled rate of salary increase 10.25 8.25
Expected rate of increase in pension = -
Expected rate of increase in medical benefit - -
Reconciliation of (receivable from) / payable to defined benefit plans
Note | 2021 i1 2020 |
---- (Rupees in '000) ---- ---- (Rupees in '000) ----

Pension fund Gratuity fund Pension fund Gratuity fund
Present value of obligations 395 - 147,412 - 132,233
Fair value of plan assets 39.6 - (149,994) - (142,916)
(Receivable) / payable - - - -
19.7 F (2,582) 3 (10,683)

Movement in defined benefit obligations
Obligations at the beginning of the ysar - 132,233 - 125,477
Current service cost - 14,376 - 13,763
Interest cost - 12,268 - 13,211
Benefits paid - (7,796) - (16,096)
Past service cost = 3 3 -
Re-measurement loss / (gain) = (3,669) - (4,122)
Obligations at the end of the year - 147,412 - 132,233
Movement in fair value of plan assets
Fair value at the beginning of the year - 142,916 - 133,914
Interest income on plan assets - 13,647 - 14,676
Contributions - ' 1,899 - 9,177
Benefils paid - (7,796) - (16,096)
Re-measurements: Net return on plan assets : ’

over interest income gain / (loss) - (672) - 1,245
Fair valuc at the end of the year - 149,994 - 142,916
Movement in (veceivable) / payable

under defined benefit schemes
Opening balance - (10,683) - (8,437)
Charge / (reversal) for the year - net - 12,997 - 12,298
Contribution by the Company - net . - (1,899) - 9,177)
Re-measurement loss / (gain) recognised in OCI

during the year 39.8.2 - (2,997) - (5,367)
Benefits paid o = = -
Closing balance 5 (2,582) - (10,683)
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Charge for defined benefit plans

Cost recognised in profit and loss

Current service cost
Net interest on defined benefit asset / liability

Re-measurements recognised in OCI during the year

Loss / (gain) on obligation

- Demographic assumptions

- Financial assumptions

- Experience adjustment

Return on plan assets over interest income
Total re-measurements recognised in OCI

Components of plan assets

Cash and cash equivalents - net
Govemment securilies

Shares

Non-government debt securities
Units of mutual funds

40

PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY(PRIVATE) LIMITED

2021

| 2020

==-- (Rupees in '000) -—-

=-== (Rupees in '000) ----

Pension fund Gratuity fund  Pension fund Gratuity fund

- 14,376 - 13,763

2 (1,379) - (1,465)

- 12,997 - 12,298

. 2 & @317)

= (2,997) = (3,050)

2 (2,997) : (5.367)
2021 |1 2020 |

Pension fund

Gratuity fund Pension fund Gratuity fund

" 46 = 61
- 149,948 - 142,855
- 149,994 x 142,916

Amounts for the current year and previous four annual periods of the present value of the defined benefit obligation, the fair value of plan assets,
surplus / deficit and experience adjustments arising thereon are as follows:

Financial year Present value Fair value Surplus /

(deficit)

-=== (Rupees in "000) ----
2021 147,412 149,994 2,582
2020 132,233 142,916 10,683
2019 125,477 133,914 8,437
2018 116,781 113,384 (3,397)
2017 110,649 121,764 1L115
Sensifivity analysis
keeping all other and calculating the impact on the

Sensitivity analysis given below disclosed by varying onc

Pills

present value of the defined benefit obligations under the various employee benefit schemes:

1% increase in discount rate

1% decrease in discount rate

1 % increase in expected rate of salary increase

1 % decrease in expected rate of salary increase
1% increase in expected rate of pension increase
1% decrease in expected rate of pension increase

1% increase in expected rate of medical benefit increase
1% decrease in expected rate of medical benefit increase

Expected contributions to be paid to the funds in the next financial year

Expected charge / (reversal) for the next financial year
Maturity profile

Particulars

Year1

Year2

Year3

Year4

Year 5

Year 6 to Year 10
Year 11 and above

Gratuity fund
| 2021 | 2020
=== (Rupees in '000) ----
(7,585) (7,328)
8,394 8,103
9,073 8,789
(8,362) (8,068)
11,020 1,399
13,602 12,582
Undiscounted
| 2021 | 2020

(Rupees in '000)

13,365
4,144
25,585
43,418
8,213
85,525
156,335

14,629
13,133
3,616
22,547
37,647
73,784
105,020
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Funding Policy

41 PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED

The Company funds it annual contribution, based on actual valuation, in quarterly instalments during the year,

The scheme has various risks associated with it, however, following risks have been considered significant:

Asset volatility

The risk arises when the actual performance of the investments is lower than expectation and thus

creating a shortfall in the funding objectives.

Changes in bond yiclds

The risk arises when the actual performance of the investments is lower than expectation and thus
creating a shortfzll in the funding objectives.

Inflation risk

The most comunon type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary.
The risk arises when the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability
accordingly,

Life expectancy / Withdrawal rate

The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the
benefit obligation. The movement of the liability can go either way.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Pak-Libya Holding Company (Private) Limited - Employees' Provident Fund was established for the benefit of all permanent employees of Pak-
Libya Holding Company (Private) Limited through a trust deed dated 20 September 1981. The fund has been approved by the Commissioner of
Income tax under Part I of the sixth schedule to the repealed Income tax ordinance 1979 to take effect from 30 November 1981,

Contribution from the Company
Contribution from the Employees

Provident Fund Disclosures

L2021 || 2020

---- (Rupees in '000) ----

The following information is based on the latest financial statements of the Fund;

Size of the Tund - total assets
Cost of investment made
Fair value of investiments

Percentage of investment made

The break-up of fair valuc of investments is:

Bank balances
Market treasury bills
Pakistan investment bonds

Units of mutual funds

8,910 8,792
8,910 8,792
Unaudited Audited
Note i 2021 il 2020 i
------ (Rupees in '000) ------
142,646 123,687
141,529 122,488
40.2 141,786 122,679
99% 99%
Unaudited Audited
| - 20 || 2020 1
Rupees in '000 Percent Rupees in '000 Percent
257 0.2% 191 0.2%
141,529 99.8% 122,488 99.8%
Centificate of Investment (COls) - at amortised cost - - 2 #
141,786 100% 122,679 100%

The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 227 of the Companies Act, 2017 and

the rules formulated for this purpose.
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Total Compensation Expense

PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY(PRIVATE) LIMITED

2021
Directors
CEO Other Material
. - Members Key Management 3
Teiws Chairman Exf:::vgétg)laer Non-Executive | Shariah Board (Ij:r:‘:;lr‘;e Personnel RC':’l;lTr::::::f
Fees and allowances elc, 3,000 - 13,100 - - = %
Managerial remuneration - - - - - - "
i) Fixed - - - 40,116 66,294 30,895
ii) Total variable - - 5,859 13,240 3,100
of which - - - - = %
a) Cash bonus / awards - - = 5,859 l 13,240 [ Wl
b) Bonus and Awards in shares - - - - " =
Charge for defined benefit plan - - - 2,180 5,190 1,232
Conlribution to defined contribution plan - 2,289 - - 1,989 2,033 601
Rent and house maintenance - 4,513 - % 306 = »
Utilities and communication - 2,228 - " 1,200 794 326
Medical - 490 - = = 1,056 1,126
Conveyance / Vehicle running expense - 1,736 = - 1,042 114 491
Leave farc assistance - 9,183 s - 9,104 5,096 2,069
Club membership and subscription - - 240 88
Children education - 5,639 - = 5,640 = — -
Repatrialion expense - - - - - - £
House furnishing - - = =
Security services - 633 - = 464 - -
Visa fee and immigration 153 = 4 -
Others 296 122 218 47
Total 3,000 \ 80,360 13,100 - S 68,022 94,875 39,975
Number of persons 1 1 4 - 1 12 5
2020
— CEO Other Material
i her Material
By Chairman Fcative (athier Non-Executive Shﬁ:arll:lg;:rd fEenutive KE}’P'\if::?‘Bn:"ml Risk Takess/
than CEQ) director) Controllers
Fees and allowances etc. 2,486 - 13,986 - - - -
Managerial remuneration - - - - - = =
i) Fixed - 44,042 - - 37,553 57,815 29,450
ii) Total variable - - - - - - -
of which - - - - - - -
a) Cash bonus / awards - I: - - - I - - |
b) Bonus and Awards in shares - - - - = 2
Charge for defined benefit plan - 2,200 - - 2,058 4,836 1,478
Contribution 1o defined contribution plan - 2,257 - - 1,965 1,828 670
Rent and house maintenance - 1,263 - - 563 & =
Utilities and communication - 2,172 - - 1,437 628 328
Medical - 601 - - - 858 1,936
Conveyance / Vehicle running expense - 1,310 - - 925 772 431
Leave fare assistance - 12,205 - - 9,006 4,428 2,553
Club membership and subscription “ & . - - - -
Children education - 5,693 - = 5,757 - .
Repatriation expense - & = = = = -
House furnishing - s = = - - -
Security services - 763 = = 529 - -
Visa fee and immigration - 431 - - - - -
Others 2 241 5 : 88! 484 374
Total 2,486 N 73,178 |=3,986 - 59,881 71,649 37&
Number of persons 1 1 4 = 1 12 5

The Managing Director and Deputy Managing Director (Executive Committee) are also entitled to usape of certain Company maintained assels as per their terms of

employment and human resource policy,

Key management personnel are those executives reporting directly to the CEO / MD of the Company, whilst other material risk takers / controllers are those executives,

other than key management personnel, involved in material risk taking and related controlling aclivities respectively.
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41.2 Remuneration paid to Directors for participation in Board and Committee Meetings

2021
Meeting Fees and Allowances Paid
For Board Committees
i Sr. " Human
Na f Director For Board Risk
No. meot Hire Audit = Resources & | Credit/Investment| Total Amount
Meetings 9 Management %
Commiltee i Rem. Committee Paid

Committee g
| B Commitlee
1 Rs. in '000'
- 1 Mr. Bashir B. Omer 3,000 - - - - 3,000

2 Dr Muhammad Tahir Noor 2,500 1,400 - - - 3,900

3 Mr. Abdulfatah Ashour Ejayedi 2,500 1,400 700 - - 4,600

4 Mr. Abrar Ahmed Mirza 2,500 1,400 700 - - 4,600

Total Amount Paid 10,500 4,200 1,400 - - 16,100
I
2020
Meeting Fees and Allowances Paid
P For Board Committees
T s = —
f Direct For Board Risk H 3
; No. Mammieyf Direcki b . . % - Credit/Investment | Total Amount
Meetings Audit Committee| Management Resources & . <
5 B Committee Paid
Commillee Rem. Commiltee

{ Rs. in '000'
II ! Mr. Bashir B. Omer 2,400 - - 86 - 2,486
2 | pr Muhammad Tahir Noor 2,500 1,400 1 436 . 4,336
- 3 Mr. Abdulfatah Ashour Ejayedi 2,500 1,400 700 350 - 4,950
| 4 Mr. Abrar Ahmed Mirza 2,600 1,400 700 = : 4,700
j Total Amount Paid 10,000 4,200 1,400 872 - 16,472

41.3 Remuneration paid to Shariah Board Members
The Company does not have shariah board members, being a conventional financial institution, therefore, there is no remuncration to shariah board.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

‘The fair value of quoted securities other than those classificd as held to maturity, is based on quoted market price. The fair value of unquoted equity securities, nlhcr than
investments in associates and subsidiaries, is determined on the basis of the break-up value of these investments as per their latest available audited fi ial stat

I The fair value of unquoted debt securities, fixed term loans, other assets, other liabilities, fixed term deposits and borrowings cannot be calculated with sufficient reliability
due to the absence of a current and active market for these assets and liabilities and reliable data regarding market rates for similar instruments,

42,1 Fair value of inancial assets

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:

Level I:  Tair value measurements using quoled prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 2;

Level 3 Fair value measurements using input for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).
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The table below analyses financial instruments measured at the ¢nd of the reporting period by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair
value measurement is categorised:

Note | 2021 |
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

On balance sheet financial instruments =emmmemmemmeeemeeee———Rupees in "M —-—e e

Financial assets - measured at fair value

Investments
Federal government securities 82 - 23,880,631 - 23,880,631
Provincial government securities 8.2 - - - -
Shares 8.2 899,541 - 1,500 901,041
Non-government debt securities 8.2 - 715,792 - 715,792
Foreign securities i - ] -
Others - - - -

Financial assets - disclosed but not measured at fair value
Investments 8.2 - - 1,714,451 1,714,451

Cash and balances with treasury banks 5 - - 110,575 110,575
Balances with other banks 6 - - 197,264 197,264
Lendings to financial institutions 7 - - 3,800,000 3,800,000
Advances 9 - - 6,312,475 6,312,475
Financial liabilities - disclosed but not measured at fair value

Borrowings 16 - - (30,149,418)  (30,149,418)
Deposits and other accounts 17 - - (4,576,353) (4,576,353)
Off-balance sheet financial instruments - measured at fair value

Forward purchase of foreign exchange - - - -
Forward sale of foreign exchange & 2 - -
Forward agreements for lending - - - -
Forward agreements for borrowing - & a &
Derivatives purchases - - - -
Derivatives sales - - = =

899,541 24,596,423  (22,589,506) 2,906,458

2020
Note
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
On balance sheet financial instruments e Rupees i '000------=--=ssmasseuauees
Financial assets - measured at fair value
Investments
Federal government securities 8.2 - 21,665,976 - 21,665,976
Provincial government securities 8.2 - - - -
Shares 82 833,376 - 1,500 834,876
Non-government debt securities 82 " 841,212 - 841,212
Foreign securities - - - -

Others = 5 = _

Financial assets - disclosed but not measured at fair value
Investmenis 8.2 < - 1,570,452 1,570,452

Cash and balances with treasury banks 5 - - 63,155 63,155
Balances with other banks 6 - - 82,159 82,159
Lendings to financial institutions 7 - - 3,400,000 3,400,000
Advances 9 - - 5,674,009 5,674,009
Financial liabilities - disclosed but not measured at fair value

Borrowings 16 - - (26,391,955)  (26,391,955)
Deposits and other accounts 17 - - (4,042,892) (4,042,892)

Off-balance sheet financial instruments - measured at fair value
Forward purchase of foreign exchange - - iy .
Forward sale of foreign exchange - 3 = -
Forward agreements for lending = - o &
Forward agreements for borrowing - - ¥ z
Derivatives purchases = - - 5
Derivatives sales - -
833,376 22,507,187 (19,643,572) 3,696,991
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42,2 Fair value of non-financial assets

sy

[

o=

=

2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
On balance sheet non-financial assets mememeemeannes Rupees in '000—---—--—eeemeee
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims - 2,530,518 - 2,530,518
- 2,530,518 = 2,530,518
2020
_ Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
On balance sheet non-financial assets Rupees in ‘000
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims - 2,530,518 - 2,530,518
- 2,530,518 - 2,530,518

Methodology and Valuation Approach
For the purposes of valuation, valuer carried out inspection and survey of the land, building, plant and machinery. They verified the capacity of the
Engines and Alternators from their nameplate rating. The plant is mostly second-hand and the engines have run 50/60,000 hours.

Land
The valuer verified the land by examining the land purchase/ ownership documents or copies thereof, apart from physical verification. The valuation

of land is based upon prevailing market rates for similar usage without any restrictions for sale, transfers, etc. for large areas and the prevailing
market condition at the location. For this purpose the valuer also made inquiries from the local dealers of the area and assessed the value at Rs.56.500
million (31 December 2020: Rs.56.500 million).

Buildings And Civil Works

All civil works were physically inspected to ascertain the type of construction, finishes and present condition. The structures covered are the owned
and developed assets on owned land and long leased land holdings. The verification was also made from the architectural drawings and completion
drawings as available. The buildings were checked to ascertain the maintenance standard and construction at site in accordance with the drawings. A
suilable depreciation factor depending upon the present condition and life of the buildings was applied fo arrive at the present assessed value is
Rs.150.570 million (31 December 2020: Rs.150.570 million).

Plant and Machinery including Spares
The machinery at the site (including spares) were physically verified as far as possible, according to their description, specification and location.

Purchase invoices were used in order to determine the historical cost,

For the purpose of valuation of plant, machinery and equipment, valuer enquired values of second-hand machinery and checked their own archives,
apart from the local market, keeping in view the make, model, capacity & present condition of the plant, which resulted in valuation of Rs.1,363.009
million (31 December 2020: Rs.1,363.009 million).

As the machinery items are also lying at the port and segments are distributed into various containers at the Plant site, this will present some problems
in assembling and in absence of comprehensive assembly drawings and technical specification / rusting problems, the realisable value will suffer.

Management of the Company, after critically evaluating its options finalized the terms of restructuring deal for the disposal of these non-banking
assets with a specialized engineering firm. Under the arrangement, both the parties agreed to enter into a business venture whereby the assets of KEL
would be used for sctting up of captive power plants to be used for industrial units through power purchase agreements on 'Build Own Operate' or
‘Build Own Operate Transfer' basis. As per the agrecment, the total consideration will be paid from the power plant cashflows to be received time to
time and on such dates and with such amounts as mutually agreed by the parties. The parties involved, currently, negotiating the terms of power
purchase agreement (PPA) with identified buyers which will become the basis for relevant PPAs expected to be signed in due course accordingly.

The Company performed an impairment review to ascertain that the carrying amount of the power plant does not exceed its recoverable amount; the
review was based on a financial model with various assumptions, as the power plant has not started its operations yet. Considering the assets being
non-operational, the management also engaged an external valuation expert to assess the value of these assets. As a result of the assessment, the
management considered that no impairment on these assets would be required as the revised market/assessed as well as forced sales values based on
the report of valuation expert, exceeded their carrying values.

However, the delays faced by the engineering firm in signing the 1st PPA with the potential power purchase buyer, certain provision has been created
against these assets as per the instructions of the SBP (refer note 13.2.1).

Considering the strategic importance of these non-banking assets, the management of the Company has been engaged in negotiations with other
interested parties and evaluated out-right sell options. In this regard, the offer received exceeds the carrying value of these non-banking assets which
indicates that no further impairment is required. Further, the interested party has also deposited Rs. 50 million, subsequent to yearend, to demonstrate
its commitment to purchase.



47 PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY(PRIVATE) LIMITED

43  SEGMENT INFORMATION

43.1 Segment Details with respect to Business Activities

e

The segment analysis with respect to business activity is as follow:

2021
Corporate
SME &
and Capital ) Un-allocated
Investment Ay Mai:ke(s Re”fﬂ { others onl
Banking Bauking
Profit and loss o
Net mark-up/return/profit 212,859 408,190 - 13,845 (28,945) 605,949
Inter segment revenue - net - - - - % -
Non mark-up / return / interest income (83,190) (3,931) 102,604 612 14,059 30,154
Total Income 129,669 404,259 102,604 14,457 (14,886) 636,103
Segment direct expenses 16,529 23,870 15,082 13,836 137,701 207,018
Inter segment expense allocation 6,007 3,599 3,265 8,027 265,618 286,516
Total expenses 22,536 27,469 18,347 21,863 403,319 493,534
(Reversal) / (recovery) / provision 78,202 (45,497) 68,629 (1,232) - 100,102
Profit / (loss) before tax 28,931 422,287 15,628 (6,174) (418,205) 42,467
2021
Corporate
and Treasury Capital Sﬂf Un-allocated Total
. Investment Markets i [/ others
Statement of Financial Position Banking Banking
Cash and bank balances - 307,839 B - - 307,839
Investments 3,476,247 24,083,435 1,025,020 - 5,969 28,590,671
Net inter segment lending - - - - o -
Lendings to financial institutions - 3,830,567 - - - 3,830,567
Advances - performing 4,831,224 - - 1,275,335 147,427 6,253,986
- non-performing 1,112,610 - - 60,179 33,263 1,206,052
Others 1,319,694 665,564 - 15,048 1 ,4.1 1,787 3,412,093
Less: Provision (Loan and advances) (1,114,259) - - (33,304) - (1,147,563)
Less: Provision (Investments) (1,225,811) 9,371) (143,574) - - (1,378,756)
Less: Provision (Lending) - (30,567) - - - (30,567)
Less: Provision (Others) (407,255) (9,757) - - (6,108) (423,120)
Total Assets 7,992,450 28,837,710 881,446 1,317,258 1,592,338 40,621,202
Borrowings 5,162,570 24,065,667 - 921,182 - 30,149,419
Subordinated debt - - - - - -
Deposits and other accounts - 4,576,353 - - - 4,576,353
Net inter segment borrowing - - - - - -
Others §6,205 103,592 969 5,882 123,924 320,572
Total liabilities 5,248,775 28,745,612 969 927,064 123,924 35,046,344
Equity 3,146,280 - 1,128,097 - 1,300,481 5,574,858
Total equily and liabilities 8,395,055 28,745,612 1,129,066 927,064 1,424,405 40,621,202
Contingencies and commitments 3,738,240 - - 764,410 350,274 4,852,924
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Profit and loss

Net mark-up/return/profit

Inter segment revenue - net

Non mark-up / return / interest income
Total Income

Segment direct expenses

Inter segment expense allocation
Total expenses

(Reversal) / (recovery) / provision
Profit / (loss) before tax

Statement of Financial Position

Cash and bank balances
Investments
Net inter segment lending
Lendings to financial institutions
Advances - performing

- non-performing
Others

Less: Provision (Loan and advances)
Less: Provision (Investments)

Less: Provision (Lending).

Less: Provision (Others)

Total Assets

@

Borrowings

Subordinated debt

Deposits and other accounts
Nel inter segment borrowing
Others

Total liabilitics

Equity

Total equity and liabilities

Contingencies and commitments

TRUST ACTIVITIES

The Company did not act as trustee during the year and in corresponding year.
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2020
Coipikile i Capital SME.& Un-allocated
Investment Treasury Retail Total
. Markets : / others
Banking Banking
168,331 543,385 - 30,438 (29,634) 712,519
15,172 425,864 58,482 24 4,057 503,600
183,503 969,249 58,482 30,462 (25,577) 1,216,119
25,084 22,233 15,858 14,206 205,069 282,450
2,875 3,369 2,204 5,688 279,267 293,403
27,958 25,603 18,062 19,894 484,336 575,853
(42,689) 215,000 6,602 1,379 - 180,293
198,233 728,646 33,818 9,189 (509,913) 459,973
2020
Clgomib g Capital M & Un-allocated
Investment | Treasury Retail Total
: Markets : / others
Banking Banking
- 145,314 - - - 145314
3,590,715 21,874,748 863,998 - - 26,329,462
- 3,433,064 - - - 3,433,064
5,041,383 - - 425,530 145,087 5,611,999
1,473,926 - - 38,013 - 1,511,939
1,323,491 684,223 - 9,049 900,046 2,916,808
(1,415,394) - - (34,535) . (1,449,929)
(1,334,110) (9,371) (73,466) - - (1,416,948)
- (33,064) - - - (33,064)
(22,320) (9,757) . = (6,108) (38,185)
8,657,691 26,085,157 790,532 438,057 1,039,025 37,010,462
4,063,034 21,865,378 - 463,543 - 26,391,955
o5 4,042,892 3 z z 4,042,892
106,702 121,777 304 7,936 375,833 612,551
4,169,736 26,030,046 304 471,479 375,833 31,047,397
4,259,810 - 923,272 - 779,982 5,963,065
8,429,546 26,030,046 923,576 471,479 1,155,815 37,010,462
3,001,196 - 32,534 299,668 226,280 3,559,678
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has related party relationship with its parent, associate, joint venture, subsidiary, state controlled entities (by virtue of government shareholding), companies with common directorships, employees benefit plans, key management personne! and its directors.

The Company enters into transactions with related parties in the normal course of business. The transactions were carried out at contracted rates, Tr ions with key
persons having authority and responsibility for planning, di

personnels are governed by the applicable policies and / or terms of employment / office. Key management personnel are those
ing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of the entity. Key management personne! herein include those executives reporting directly to CEQ / MD.

Details of transacitons with related parties during the year, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are as follows:

31 December 2021 (Audited) 31 December 2020 (Audited)
Key manage- Key manage-
Parent Directors ment Subsidiaries Associ Joint v Other- TR Parent Directors ment Subsidiaries | Associates | Joint venture Other.nl::ed
parties (2) parties (2)
personnel personnel
(Rupees in '000)

Balances with other banks
In current accounts - - - - - - 105,245 - - - - - - 57,400
Lendings to financial institutions
Opening balance - - - - - - 1,000,000 - - - - - - 250,000
Addition during the year - - - - - - 4,450,000 - - - - - - 1,250,000
Repaid during the year - - - - - - (4,750,000) - - - - - - (500,000)
Transfer in / (out) - net - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Closing balance - - - - - - 700.000 - - - - - - 1,000,000
Investments
Opening balance ’ - - - - 1,500 704,867 22,272,681 - - - 5,000 500 704,867 15,726,138
Investment made during the year - - - - - - 8,654,188 - - - (4,000) - - 17,015,578
I d d / disposed off during the year - - - - - - (5,575,432) - - - (1,000) 1,000 - (10,467,035)
Transfer in / (out) - net - - - - - - = = 27,563,049 =) A = a -
In deposit accounts = - - = i = = = —
Closing balance - - - - 1,500 704.867 25,351.437 - 27,563,049 - - 1,500 704,867 22,272,681
Provision for diminution in value of investments - - - - - 704,867 83.134 - - - - 704,867 72448
Surplus / (deficit) in value of investments - - - - = = (1.167.164) - = = - - - (383.585)
Advances
Opening balance - - 48,454 - - - 42,825 - - 49,275 ) - - - 38,835
Addition during the year - - 20,262 - - - - - - 12,588 - - - 21,275
Repaid during the year - - (17,068) - # " (2,633) * 5 (25,442) » = * (3,496)

Transfer in / {out) - net - - 19,502 - - - (19.502) = = 12,035 - - - (13,789)
Closing balance - - 71,150 - - = 3 20,650 - - 48,454 - - - 42,825

Provision held against advances - - - - - - - o

4



Other Assets

Interest / mark-up accrued
Receivable from staff retirement fund
Other receivable (4)

Other advances

Advance taxation

Provision against other assets

Borrowings

Opening balance
Borrowings during the year
Settled during the year
Transfer in / (out) - net
Closing balance

Subordinated debt

Opening balance

Issued / Purchased during the year
Redemption / Sold during the year
Closing balance

Deposits and other accounts

Opening balance

Received during the year
Withdrawn during the year

Transfer in / (out) - net

Closing balance

Other Liabilities

Interest / mark-up payable
Payable to staff retirement fund
Other liabilities

Contingencies and Commitments
Other contingencies
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31 December 2021

(Audited)

PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED

31 ber 2020 (Audited]
Key manage-| = Key manage- =
Parent -Directors ment Subsidiaries Associates Joigt Other-rehted Parent Directors ment Subsidiaries Associates doint Oth:r.related
venture parties (2) : venture parties (2)
personnel
(Rupees in '000)
- - - - - - 621,538 - - 1,996 - - - 603,863
- 5,983 - - 1,466 - - - 5,983 - - 1,466 - -
- - 250 - - - 160 - 4,830 350 - - - 100
= 2 i 2 - - 790,668 - - - - - » 546,392
- (5.983) - - - - - - (5,983) - - - - -
- - - - - - 9,611,528 - - - - - - 6,059,105
= e 3 - i E 547,829,245 o & = C = ] 352,445,482
- - - - - - (539,274,117) - - - - - - (348,893,059)
- - - - - - 18.166,656 - - - - - - 9,611,528
- - - - 185,000 - 3,603,756 - - - - 185,000 - 1,336,020
- - - - 552,500 - 28,792,836 - - - - 360,000 - 14,466,087
- - - - (512,500) - (28,672,832) - - - - (360,000) - (12,198,351)
- - - - 225,000 - 3,723,760 - - - - 185,000 - 3.603.756
- - - - 284 - 45,122 - - - - 150 - 51,533
- - - - - - - - - - - - - (5,378)
5324 2.058 3.406 - - 1.008 1.237 4,808 - - - - 1,008 463
- % c = - 873.922 348.141 - - - - - 870,743 213.227




51 PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY(PRIVATE) LIMITED

31 December 2021 (Audited) 31 December 2020 (Audited)
Key manage- Key manage-
Parent Directors ment Subsidiaries Associates | Joint venture Oﬂ‘:i:l(n;;ﬁ Parent Directors ment Subsidiaries Associates | Joint venture Other-relaled
personnel A personnel parties (2)
(Rupees in '000)

Income
Mark-up / return / interest earned -net - - 1,393 - - - 1,977,215 - - 3,015 - - - 2,132,592
Fee and commission income - - - - - - - 5
Dividend Income - - - - - - 20,080 - - - - - - 5,350
Gain on sale of securities - net - - - - - - 4,023 - - - - - - 12,230
Gain on disposal of fixed assets " - - - - - - - - 366 & . = - - 3
Expense
Mark-up / return / interest expensed ) - - 25 -3 15,606 - 1,185,000 - - - - 19,015 - 751,785
Operating expenses
Office maintenance and related expenses - 1,700 - - 16,798 - - - 1,700 - - 16,031 - -
Non-executive directors' remuneration - 16,100 - - - - - - 16,472 - - - - -
Board Meeting Expense - 4,996 3,482 - - - 303 - 5,431 3,137 - - - 1,514
Remunerations - 142,264 87,652 - - - . 38,140 - 126,702 64,985 - - - 35,072
Consultancy expense - - - = = - - - = - - - 1,392 -
Contribution to defined contribution plan - 4,278 2,033 - - - 601 - 4,222 1,828 - - - 670
Contribution to defined benefit plan - 4,440 5,190 - - - 1,232 - 4,257 4,836 - - - 1,478
Depreciation - 22,337 825 - - - 256 - 20,118 785 - - - 177
Other Charges
Others - - £ - = 4,345 - - - - 4 - 2,772 -
Insurance premium paid - - - - - 1,497 - - - - - - 3,388 -
Insurance claims settled - - - - - 2

(1) Executives directors and key management personnel are also entitled to the usage of certain Company assets as per their terms of employment.

(2) It includes state controlled entities, certain other material risk takers and controllers. .

(3) Transactions with owners have been disclosed in "Statement of changes in equity”,

(4) In financial year 2017, Rs. 26,11 million was paid to former Deputy Managing Director (DMD) of the Company, who was relocated to Libya on 31 March 2017, on account of depreciation benefit, transpartation cost and tax paid by the Company. The Board subsequently resolved that the said benefits will be
recovered from former DMD partly from sale pi ds of the car dered by former DMD to the Company and partly from actual payment. The car was disposed off in financial year 2018 against sale proceeds of Rs, .11 million in addition to actual cash received dmounting to Rs. 11.004 million. The
management has been following up for the remaining amount of 5.983 million, which is appearing in other receivables (Note 13).

(5) Remuneration and short term employee benefits are disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements.
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| 2021 || 2020 |

CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS == (Rupees in '000) ----

Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR):
Paid-up capital (net of losses) 6,041,565 5,737,211

Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR):

Eligible Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) Capital 4,750,019 4,565,709
Eligible Additional Tier 1 (ADT 1) Capital . - -
Total Eligible Tier 1 Capital 4,750,019 4,565,709
Eligible Tier 2 Capital - -
Total Eligible Capital (Tier 1 + Tier 2) 4,750,019 4,565,709

Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs):

Credit Risk 13,613,829 12,217,871
Market Risk 5,089,600 5,466,114
Operational Risk : 1,054,835 803,417
Total 19,758,264 18,487,402
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Adequacy ratio - ' 24.04% 24.70%
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio 24.04% 24.70%
Total Capital Adequacy Ratio 24.04% 24,70%

Leverage Ratio (LR):

Eligiblle Tier-1 Capital 4,750,019 4,565,709
Total Exposures 65,186,811 56,743,118
Leverage Ratio . 7.29% 8.05%

Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR):

Total High Quality Liquid Assets 2,032,257 3,722,130
Total Net Cash Outflow 667,962 2,065,310
Liquidity Coverage Ratio 304% 180%

Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR):

Total Available Stable Funding ) 15,835,910 14,459,512
Total Required Stable Funding 10,860,903 9,832,361
Net Stable Funding Ratio 146% 147%

The full disclosures on the CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS is available at
https://paklibya.com.pk/financial_reports.php?type=Capital_Adequacy_Statements
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46,1 CAPITAL ASSESSMENT AND ADEQUACY

46.1.1 Capital adequacy

SBP’s regulatory capital guidelines under Basel III allow for three tiers of capital. Commeon Equily Tier I capital includes common shares
and retained camings. Pak Libya currently does not hold any instruments in Additional Tier 1 or Tier 2 capital. The authorised share
capital of the Company is Rs.10,000 million and the paid-up capital is Rs. 8,141.780 million consisting of 814,178 shares with a par
value of Rs.10,000 per share.

Company’s regulatory capital is divided into three tiers.

*  Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1), which includes fully paid up capital and statutory reserves as per the financial statements and
unappropriated loss after all regulatory adjustments applicable on CETI.

*  There is no amount for Additional Tier 1 Capital (AT1) of the Company.
*  Tier 2 capital includes revaluation reserves on account of unrealised gain on available-for-sale investments and general provisions for

loan losses (up to a maximum of 1.25 % of credit risk weighted assets).

The table below illustrates the following approaches that are adopted at Pak Libya for capital requirements calculation under Basel 11l in
relation to the various risk types under Pillar 1;

Credit Risk Standardized Approach
Market Risk Standardized Approach
Operational Risk ‘ Basic Indicator Approach

Minimum capital requirement

SBP has prescribed that the minimum paid-up capital (free of losses) for DFI is required to be maintained at Rs.6 billion and ralio of total
regulatory capital to risk weighted asset is to be maintained at or above 10% alongwith Capital Conservation Buffer (CCB) of 1.5%
which is reduced from 2.5% as a result of COVID-19 pandemic. The paid-up capital (free of losses) of the Company as of 31 December
2021 amounted to Rs. 6.042 billion, which is above the minimum capital requirement of Rs.6 billion. During the year, the Company has
increased its paid-up capital to Rs.8.142 billion after the injection of remaining equity contribution from Government of Pakistan.

Capital management

A strong capital position is essential to the Company’s business strategy and competitive position. The Company’s capital strategy
focuses on long-term stability, which aims to build and invest in core business activities. The Company seeks to maintain adequate levels

of capital in order to:

= comply with the capital requirement set by the regulators of the Company;
« safeguard Company’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for

other stakeholders;
- acquire, develop and maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business activities;
«  support the underlying risks inherited in the core business activities; and

+  be able to withstand capital demands under market shocks and stress conditions.

The Company carries out Capital Planning annually to ensure the sufficiency of capital keeping in view the business strategy, expected
growth, regulatory requirements, Basel I1 guidelines and risks associated with the business operations. The capital planning is normally
undertaken for the harizon of next three to five years. The plan takes the following into account:
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+  current capital requirement

+ growth of core financing and investment business based on activities plans of the various business units (Investment Banking,
Advisory & Syndication, Corporate/Commercial & SME, Treasury and Capital Market)

« the funding structure and sources of funding, liabilities and equity to support the asset growth taking into consideration the need to
maintain strong liquidity position based on Basel III guidelines

» maintenance of regulatory capital requirements and capital adequacy ratios

The Company has a comprehensive Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP). The Company’s ICAAP covers the capital
management, sets the process for assessment of the adequacy of capital to support current and future activities / risks and a report on the
capital projections for a period of three to five years. The ICAAP report is produced on an annual basis and is approved by the Board of
Directors.

Under the ICAAP methodology, the following risk types are identified and measured:

+»  risks covered under Pillar 1 (credit risk, market risk and operational risk)
+  risks not fully covered under Pillar I (Residual Risk)
»  risks covered under Pillar 2 (concentration risk, interest rate risk, llquldlty risk, reputational risk, strategic/business risk)

The Company has also implemented Stress Testing Framework as per the SBP guidelines. This involves the use of various techniques to
assess the Company’s susceptibility to plausible yet extreme stress scenarios. The stress tests cover shocks related to credit risk, interest
rate risk, exchange rate risk, equity price risk, liquidity risk and operational risk. The stress tests are performed QUarterly and results are
reported to Management and Board of Directors through respective Risk Management Commiliee.

Scope of applications

The Basel III Capital Regulations (Basel I11) are applicable to Pak Libya Holding Company (Private) Limited in line with the guidelines
issued by State Bank of Pakistan (SBP).

SBP has issued the framework and guidance regarding implementation of the capital reforms under Basel I - which are effective from 31
December 2013. Accordingly, the Company's Risk Weighted Assets (RWA), total capital and related ratios are caleulated under the Basel

framework.

Basel-III framework enables a more risk-sensitive regulatory capital calculation along with tightening of capital requirements, raising the
quality, consistency and transparency of capital base to promete long term viability of the Company. As the Company carry on the
business, it is critical that the Company is able to continuously monitor the exposure across entire organization and aggregate the risks so
as to take an integrated approach/view. Maximization of the return on risk-adjusted capital is the principal basis to be used in determining
how capital is allocated within the Company to a particular segment of business.

Significant subsidiary

Currently, Pak Libya does not have any' subsidiary as the Company has disposed off 80% of its shareholding and management control in
Kamoke Powergen (Privat) Limited (KPL). Furthermore, the Company does not have significant investment in any insurance entity.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has an independent risk management function and developed sound risk management framework to continuously manage and mitigate
risks emanating from the regular course of its operational and financial activities. The risk management framework and policies of the Company are
guided by specific objectives to ensure that comprehensive and adequate risk management policies are established to mitigate salient risk elements in
the operational facets of the Company. The Board of Directors provides the strategic direction for effective risk management and ensures that a robust
risk management framework is in place including the required human resources, policies, procedures and systems. The Board’s Risk Management
Committee along with various management committees supports Board of Directors in order to achieve this task. It involves identification,
measurement, monitoring and controlling risks with a view to ensure that:

- Adequate capital is available as a buffer;
- Exposures remain within the limits prescribed by the Board of Directors; and
- Risk taking decisions are in line with the policy guidelines, business strategy and objectives set by the Board.

Scope of application of Basel III frameworlk

State Bank of Pakistan, through BPRD circular no. 06 dated 15 August 2013, requires Banks/DFIs to report the Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) under
the Basel I1I framework with CAR requirements increasing in a transitory manner through 2019.

The Company is exposed 1o a number of risks, which it manages at different levels.
The main categories of risk associated to / with the Company are as follows:
Credit risk

The risk of losses resulting from counterpartics’ failure to meet all or part of their obligations towards the Company. The Company has adopted
Standardized Approach for credit risk reporting under Basel IIl framework.

The Company has established an appropriate credit risk structure and culture whereby policies are reviewed and revamped to maintain sound credit
granting procedures, maintaining appropriate credit administration, measurement, monitoring processes and adequate controls.

Risk management structure facilitates the Credit approval function by its Internal Credit Risk Rating model through which an appropriate risk level of
the borrower / counterparty is assessed for credit sanctioning and disbursement.

The Company manages credit risk through:

- Establishment of acceptable risk appetite and tolerance levels;

- Sound procedures, tools and controls for the management of risk assets and credit documentation;
- Targel market planning and overall market intelligence; and

- Accurate and detailed information about the borrower, its financial position and operations.

Marlket risk

The risk of losses resulting from the variance in the market value of the Company's assets and liabilities owing to changes in market conditions. The
Company has adopted Standardized Approach for market risk reporting under Basel 111 framework.

Market risk measures and controls are applied at the portfolio level and limits and other controls are applied to particular books and to specific
portfolios. Controls and established parameters are applicd to prevent any undue risk concentrations in the trading book and include controls on
exposure to individual market risk factors and on positions in securities of individual issuers.

The principal market risk in respect to the Company's assels and liability management is primarily associated with the capital market exposure and the
maturity and repricing mismatches of its assets and liabilities. The Board is responsible for reviewing and recommending all market risk policies and
cnsures that sound market risk and effective risk management systems are established and complied with regulatory guidelines.
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Operational risk

The risk of losses resulting from deficient or erroncous internal procedures, human or system errors, or external events. The Company has adopted
Basic Indicator Approach for operational risk reporting under Basel 11 framework.

The Company has in place a duly approved operational risk policy, manual, disaster recovery system (DRS) and a business continuity plan (BCP).
These are continuously reviewed to strengthen operational controls prevailing in the Company.

Operational risk policy and manual set minimum standards and require all business units to identify and assess risks through loss data collection, Risk
Control Self Assessment (RCSA) and key risk indicators (KRIs). The departments are responsible for day-to-day monitoring of operational risks and
for limiting losses as a result thereof. The department is responsible to report any potential deviation giving rise to operational risk events in the
Company. ?

The Company is in the process of continuously improving its internal controls which aids in strengthening the Operational Risk Management of the
Company. In this regards, the Company maintains a detailed internal control over financial reporting (ICFR) documentation.

Liquidity risk

The risk arising due to failure in raising funds at reasonable cost within the required time duration to finance the Company's operations and meet its
liabilities when these become due is categorised as liquidity risk.

The Company's approach to liquidity risk management is to ensure as far as possible that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when due. The Liquidity Management Policy is formulated keeping in view SBP's guidelines on risk management and Basel 11l principles on sound -
liquidity management, The Company has also formulated Liquidity Risk Management policy as per SBP's guidelines. The risk management division
uses different tools for identifying, assessing, measuring and controlling liquidity risk and periodically reports to senior management and risk
management committees. The Company is also preparing leverage ratio report on quarterly basis for senior management, risk management committees

and regulator.

The Basel Committee on Banking Supervision has developed two standards intended for use in liquidity risk supervision: the “Liquidity Coverage
Ratio” and “Net Stable Funding Ratio”,

The LCR is a regulatory requirement set (o ensure that the Company has unencumbered high quality liquid assets to meet its liquidity needs in a 30-
calendar-day liquidity stress scenario. The Company monitors and reports its liquidily position under the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) guidelines on
Basel 111 Liquidity Standards implementation in Pakistan, The LCR became effective on 31 March 2017, with currently no minimum ratio requirement
in Pakistan for DFIs, however, the Company ratio stood at 153% on an average during the year 2021 while the ratio stood at 304% as on December 31,

2021.

The Net Stable Funding Ratio is the regulatory metric for assessing the Company's structural funding profile. The NSFR is intended to reduce long-
term funding risks by requiring banks/DFIs to maintain a stable funding profile in relation to their on- and off-balance sheet activities. The ratio is
defined as the amount of Available Stable Funding (AST) (the portion of capital and liabilities expected to be a stable source of funding), relative to the
amount of Required Stable Funding (RSF) (a function of the liquidity characteristics of various assets held). Banks/DFls are expected to meet the
NSFR requirement of at least 100% on an ongoing basis from 31 December 2017, however, the Company remained above the required level while

mainlaining the ratio at 146% as on 31 December 2021. :

The management is responsible for managing liquidity profile of the Company although strategic management of liquidity has been delegated to Asset
& Liability Committee (ALCO). The ALCO of the Company deliberate and recommend liquidity strategy ensuring that appropriate policies and
procedures are in place to control and constrain liquidity risk. It is also responsible for ensuring that the Company has adequate information systems for

measuring, monitoring, controlling and reporting liquidity risk.
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47.1 Credit risk
Credit risk management objectives and policies

Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss arising from defaults by counterparties in meeting their obligations. Exposure to credit risks for
the Company arises primarily from the lending and investment activities.

Credit exposures include both individual borrowers, corporates and groups of connected counterpartics & SMEs and portfolios in the
Company's banking/trading books.

The management of credit risk is governed by the credit policy and procedure approved by the Board and the Management respectively. The
procedure and policy guideline spell out relevant process flow, approval authorities, limits, risks, credit ratings and other matters involved in
order to ensure sound credit granting and approving standards in compliance with the Prudential Regulations and Risk Management
Guidelines of the State Bank of Pakistan.

Appropriate levels of facilities are approved by the Board of Directors through Policy Guidelines. The Executive Committee (EC) approves
facilities of upto the limit defined in Credit Policy guidelines based on the internal or external risk rating of the borrower and
escalated/enhanced up to the limit approved by the Board.. The facilities exceeding this limit require approval from the Board of Directors on
recommendation of the EC. Credit Committee (CC) considers and recommends the said facilities to EC upon identifying key opportunities
and risks prevalent in taking requisite exposure towards the borrower / counterparty,

The Company currently uses Standardised Approach for computing capital charge on credit risk weighted assets. Currently, the Company
does not employ Credit Risk Mitigation (CRM) approach as there is no hedging (in whole or in part) by a collateral posted by the third party
on the behalf of the counterparly. : 25 ‘ ‘

" Credit risk rating

Credit risk rating is an important tool in assessing, monitoring and controlling credit risk. In order to identify changes in risk profiles at early
stages, credits with deteriorating ratings are subject to additional oversight and menitoring.

The Internal Credit Risk Rating System (ICRRS) is intended to reflect the overall risk profile of the borrower / guarantor / counterparty. Risk
ratings are assigned according to the perception of risk on a numerical scale, determined within the qualitative and quantitative set of
paramelers and variables encompassing the risk levels of the borrower / guarantor / counterparty. The Credit scoring in the ICRRS is being
conducted by Investment Banking, Advisory & Syndication Department/ Corporate,Commercial & SME Department which is reviewed by
the Risk Management Function on periodic basis and from time to time upon receiving the required information and documents of the credit

propesal/obligor for its eredit approval.

Objective of Internal Credit Risk Rating (ICRR)
Credit ratings are aimed at achieving one or more of the following:

- Internal risk reporting;

- Portfolic management; and

- Setting of credit risk concentration limits.
- identifying key financial trends.

The Company constantly updates and improves upon its rating system to facilitate prudent lending decisions along with proactive and
effective identification and monitoring of potential credit risks emanating from the lending activities of the Company.

The Company also uses and give due weightage to external rating while evaluating the risk. The Company considers external ratings assigned
by external credit rating agencies including PACRA and / or VIS.

Exposures VIS PACRA Other
Corporate Yes Yes X
Yes Yes X

Banks
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Credit exposures subject to standardised approach

2021 2020
Rating Amount Deduction Amount Deduction
Exposures Category outstanding CRM* Net amount outstanding CRM* Net amount
—memeemmeememmeen (Rupees in '000) ---meevomemeeemen mmmeeeeemmneee- (Rupees in '000) ---—-rmeemeeeee

Corporate 0 - - - - - -
1 648,551 - 648,551 99,626 - 99,626
2 3,798,649 - 3,798,649 3,113,163 - 3,113,163
3-4 449,422 - 449,422 639,099 - 639,099

5-6 - - - - - -
Unrated 2,384,688 - y 2,384,688 2,598,238 - 2,598,238
7,281,310 - 7,281,310 6,450,125 - - 6,450,125

Banks 0 - - % - - -
1 2,110,065 Co- 2,110,065 580,567 - 580,567
23 2,103,819 = 2,103,819 2,901,592 “ 2,901,592

4-5 - - - - - -

6 = = - 2 3 s

Unrated - - - - - -
4,213,884 - 4,213,884 3,482,159 - 3,482,159

Sovereigns - - - - = -
Total Credit Exposure 11,495,194 B 11,495,194 9,932,285 - 9,932,285

*CRM= Credit Risk Mitigation

The accounting policies and methods used by the Company are in accordance with the requirements of SBP guidelines and prudential
regulations. These policies arc disclosed in note 4 to these financial statements. Reconciliation in the provision against non-performing -
advances has been disclosed in note 9.4 of these financial statements.
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47.12

47.1.3

Lendings to financial institutions

Credit risk by public/ private sector

Public/ Government
Private

Investment in debt securities

Credit risk by industry sector

Agriculture, Forestry, Hunting and Fishing
Mining and Quarrying

Textile

Chemical and Pharmaceuticals
Cement

Sugar

Footwear and Leather garments

A bile and portation equif

Electronics and electrical appliances
Construction

Power (electricity), Gas, Water, Sanitary
Vehicle & Asset Tracking

Food & Agricultue

Transport, Storage and Ce ication
Financial

Insurance

Services

Individuals

Others

Credit risk by public / private sector

Public/ Government
Private

df‘l’ﬂﬂfﬂl

Credit rislk by industry sector

Agriculture, Forestry, Hunting and Fishing
Mining and Quarrying

Textile

Chemical and Pl ical§

Cement

Sugar

Footwear and Leather garments
Automobile and transportation equipment
Electronics and electrical appliances
Construction

Power (electricity), Gas, Water, Sanitary
Wholesale and Retail Trade

Engineering

Transport, St orage and C icalion
Financial

[nsurance

Services

Individuals

Manufacturing

Others
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2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Gross Non-performing Provision held
Rs '000-
30,567 33,064 30,567 33,064 30,567 33,064
30,567 33,064 30,567 33,064 30,567 33,064
1,925 1,925 1,925 1,925 1,925 1,925
806,103 841,817 291,817 291,817 291,817 291,817
87,191 15,957 15,957 15,957 15,957 15,957
355,543 105,876 - - - =
75,000 85,000 - - - -
1,464,240 1,710,472 124,695 24,775 35,984 24,775
4,441 4,441 4,441 4,441 4,441 4,441
2,794,443 2,765,488 438,835 338,915 350,124 338,915
2,794,443 2,765,488 438,835 338,915 350,124 338915
2,794,443 2,765,488 - 438,835 338,915 350,124 338915
417375 323,003 7,354 7,354 7,354.00 7,354.00
1,114,056 1,131,856 201,758 201,758 193,227 193,227
936,330 573,617 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000
200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000
896,154 539,318 70,999 70,999 70,993 70,999
338,781 338,781 138,781 138,781 138,781 138,781
688,189 907,371 - - - -
5493 2,711 - - 5 =
1,138,291 1,454,815 - 301,135 - 301,135
589,461 478,897 53,897 53,897 3,897 3,897
352,746 360,630 - - - -
- 91,838 - - - -
51,132 102,409 - - - -
180,690 185,411 33,263 38,014 33,251 34,491
551,338 433,281 - - = =
7,460,036 7,123,938 1,206,052 1,511,938 1,147,509 1,449,884




47.1.4

47.1.5

Credit risk by public / private sector

Public/ Government
Private

Contingencies and Commitnients

Credit risk by industry sector

Agriculture, Forestry, Hunting and Fishing
Mining and Quarrying

Textile

Chemical and Pharmaceuticals

Cement

Sugar

Footwear and Leather garments
Automobile and transportation equipment
Electronics and elcctrical appliances
Construction

Power (electricity), Gas, Water, Sanitary
Wholesale and Retail Trade
Exports/Imports

Transport, Storage and Communication
Financial

Insurance

Engineering

Services

Individuals

Manufacturing

Others

Credit risk by publie / private sector
Public / Government

Private

Concentration of Advances
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2021 2020 2021 2020

2021 2020

Gross advances Non-performing advances

Provision held

Rs '000
7,460,036 7,123,938 1,206,052 1,511,938 1,147,509 1,449,884
7,460,036 7,123,938 1,206,052 1,511,938 1,147,509 1,449,884

2021 11 2020 |

-=== (Rupees in '000) ----

1,414,780 500,000

> 175,000

70,845 77,152

2,023,460 1,720,743
851 -

2 300,000

5 350,000
524,674 =

468,040 177,969

u 40,304

4,502,650 3,341,168
1,764,780 .

2,737,870 3,341,168

4,502,650 3,341,168

The bank top 10 exposures on the basis of total (funded and non-funded expsoures) aggregated to Rs 4,777.75 million (2020: Rs 4,825.50) are as following:

Funded
Non Funded
Tolal Exposure

The sanctioned limits against these top 10 expsoures aggregated to Rs 4,313.00 million (2020: Rs 4,091.13 million)

Total funded classified therein

OAEM
Substandard
Doubtful
Loss

Total

ding funded fi

| 2021 I 2020 |
---- (Rupees in '000) -—-
3,554,292 3,604,761
1,223,460 1,220,743
4,771,752 4,825,504
| 2021 | 2020 |
Amount Provision held Amount Provision held
500,000 500,000 801,135 801,135
500,000 500,000 801,135 801,135

ities and utilised non-funded facilities as at the reporting date.

For the purpose of this note, exf & means
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47.1.6 Advances - Province/Region-wise Disbursement & Utilization

47.2

47.2.1

61
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2021 |
Disbur Uil

. : KPK includi AJK including

Proyince/Region Punjab Sindh B Balock Talainakad
} B ’ FATA Gilgit-Baltistan
Punjab - - - - = % -
Sindh 3,136,476 2,001,602 1,134,874 = 5 = :
KPK including FATA - - - - - - &
Balochistan - - - - - - .
Islamabad - - - - - - .
AJK including Gilgit-Baltistan - - - - - - =
Total 3,136,476 2,001,602 1,134,874 < 5 - E

| 2020 |
Disbursements Utilization

Province/Reglon Punjab Sindh REE Balogiilstin Islamabad (‘;.Jl;t‘_’l‘;;;'i‘:ai
Punjab - - - - - - “
Sindh n 2,286,446 2,234,219 52,227 - - - =
KPK including FATA - - = 4 = ¥ "
Balochistan - - - A . g b
Islamabad - - - - - = =
AJK including Gilgit-Ballistan - - - - - . s
Total "~ 2,286,446 2,234219 52227 . 5 = z

Disbursements mean the amounts disbursed by banks cither in Pak Rupee or in foreign currency against loans.
“Disbursements of Province/Region wise” refers to the place from where the funds are being issued by scheduled banks to the borrowers.

“Ulilization of Province/Region wise” refers to the place where the funds are being utilized by borrower,

Market Risk

Market risk vefers to the impact on the Company's financial condition resulting from future price volatility or adverse movements in the value of assets contained in its trading book
and / or investment portfolio, The principal market risk in respect of the Companys's assets and liabilities is primarily associated with the maturity and repricing mismatches of its
assets and liabilities and equity price risk. The risk emanating from any potential changes in market prices, dus to changes in the interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity
prices are duly identified and accounted for. .

A trading book consists of positions in financial instruments held either with trading intent or in order to hedge other elements of the trading book. To be eligible for trading book,
financial instruments must either be free of any restrictive covenants on their tradability or able to be hedged completely.

Transaction undertaken by the financial institution for the banking book means any position or financial instrument held by the Company in the normal course of business, not for
trading purpose, or financial instrument that the financial institution intends to hold until maturity. All investment excluding trading book are considered as part of banking book
which includes Available-for-Sale, Held-to-Malurity and Strategic Investments. Due to diversified nature of investments in banking book, it shall be subject to interest rate and equity

price risk,

The Company has a sound framework for Market Risk management with the Treasury Investment Policy and Market Risk Management policy duly approved by the Board.

The Market Risk Management framework of the Company comprises of exposure limits, a series of stop loss limils and potential loss limits recommended by Asset and Liability
Committee (ALCO) / Investment committee of the Company to ensure that front line risk-takers do not exceed or breach the defined boundaries set by the management, Limit
management is a control mechanism to ensure that all business activitics are conducted in compliance with the risk management guidelines and policies. Gap analysis is conducted on
regular basis in order to assess the quantum of market risk and liquidity position of the Company. The limits are set and reviewed regularly afler taking into account number of factors,
including market trading, liquidity of the instruments, returns and Company's business strategy.

Management of interest rate risk of the banking and / or trading book is primarily focused on interest cum fair value through Re-pricing Gap Analysis and Fair Value Sensitivity. The

management of interest rate risk of the trading boek is achieved through mark-to-market practice. On quarterly basis, the Stress Test reports are being prepared for senior management,
risk management committees and regulator to have an accurate understanding of Company's risk tolerance levels,

The description of portfolios covered under the approach shall also be detailed along with the capital charge required there againsl.

Statement of financial position split by trading and banking books o
2021 1 2020 |
Banking book_ Trading book Total Banking book Trading book Total
Rupees in '000-

Cash and balances with treasury banks 110,575 - 110,575 63,155 - 63,155
Balances with other banks 197,264 - 197,264 82,159 - 82,159
Lendings to financial institutions 3,800,000 - 3,800,000 3,400,000 - 3,400,000
Investments 26,312,373 899,541 27,211,914 24,079,139 833,376 24,912,515
Advances 6,312,475 - 6,312,475 . 5,674,009 - 5,674,009
Fixed assets 96,472 - 96,472 97,813 - 97,813
Intangible assets 973 - 973 1,964 - 1,964
Deferred tax assets 434,796 - 434,796 189,306 - 189,306
Oblict assets 2,456,733 - 2,456,733 2,589,541 - 2,589,541

39,721,661 89954,___1_' 40,621,202 36,177,086 833376 37,010,462




62 PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY(PRIVATE) LIMITED

47.2,2 Foreign Exchange Risk

4123

47,24

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign currency rates. The Group's exposure to this risk is nagllgxbls asits
assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in Pakistan rupees.

| 2021 1] 2020
CForeign Fnrglgn Off-balance sheet Ret ferlg Foreign Currency ~ Foreign Currency  Ofi-balance sheet Netforelgn
urrency Currency it currency A sichs el : currency
hiatis Liabilities cms e ssels Liabilities items
posure exposure
Rupees in '000 Rupees in '000
Pak-rupee - - - - - - - -
United States Dollar 128 - 32,340 - 115 - 29,623 -
Greal Britain Pound Sterling - - - - - - - -
Euro - - - = = = = B
Japanese Yen - - - - - - - -
Other currencies - - . - = ” - -
128 - 32,340 - 115 - 29,623 -
| 2021 11 2020
Banking book Trading book Banking book Trading book
Rupees in '000
Impact of 1% change in foreign exchange rates on
- Profit and loss account 1 - 1 £
“ = Other comprehensive income - - - -
- Other* 323 = 296 =

* 1) The impact of changes in foreign exchange rate will not affect profitability of the Company since the exposure is off-balance sheet.

* 2) Off-balance sheet items include a guarantees issued on behalf of KEL, a joint venture. During the year 2012, a decision was announced by the Honorable Supreme Court of
Pakistan (Court), in which all contracts of RPPs were declared to be illegal and void ab initio and as a result of which the guarantee remained inoperative. Consequently, as per the
opinion of the legal advisor, there cannot be any exposure of the Group under the same.

Equity position Risk

The risk arising from taking long or short positions, in the trading book ,in the equities and all instruments that exhibit market behavior similar to equities. Banks/DFIs are required to
disclose their objectives and pelices regarding trading in equities.

| 2021 11 2020 ]
Banking book Trading book Banking book Trading book
Rupees in ‘000

Impact of 5% change in equily prices on
- Profit and loss account = = o 740
- Other comprehensive income - 44,977 - 40,929

Yield / Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book (IRRBB)-Basel II Specific
Yicld/ Interest rate sensitivity position for on-balance sheet instruments is based on the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity date and for off-balance sheet instruments is based
on settlement date. This also refers to the-non-trading market risk. Apart from the gap analysis between the market rate sensitive assets and liabilities as per the table given below, the

banks/DFIs are required to disclose as the following also:-

- The nature of IRRBB and key assumptions, including assumplions regarding loan repayments and behavior of non-maturily deposils, and frequency of IRRBB
measurements

- The increase (decline) in eamings or economic value ( or any other relevant measures used by management) for upward and downward shocks according to management's method
for measuring IRRBB, broken down by currencies (if any, and than translated into Rupees)

| 2021 1[ 2020 ]
Banking book Trading book Banking book Trading book
Rupees in '000

Impact of 1% change in interest rates on - )
- Profit and loss account = 5 o =
- Other comprehensive income (2,043,960) - (1,048,390) -
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Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems-or from external events.

PLHC has a minimal appetite for operational risk and seeks to limit risk from the impact of unforeseen operational failures within the organization.
However, any unforeseen event beyond the risk appetite level might be a cause or consequence of operational loss, whenever it affects or impacts
adversely on PLHC’s tolerance level in terms of capital, profitability or risk profile.

Operational risk tolerance level consists of zero tolerance for fraud, forgeries and theft, strict compliance for avoiding any regulatory and legal risk,
preventing any deviations from approved policies and procedures of respective departments thereby ensuring an acceptable assessment, with a
positive risk-reward trade-off, under the controlled environment and ensuring proper mechanism to avoid system failures or information and data

Operational risk may arise through various events, including intemnal fraud, external fraud, employment practices and workplace safety, clients,
products, & business practices, damage to physical assets, business disruption & system failures and execution, etc. The causes, consequences, effect
and impact are all mapped to mitigate the occurrence of such events in future,

The ultimate accountability for operational risk management rests with the board with all business and support functions forming an integral part of
the overall operational risk management framework with adequate support from line management in order to establish processes for the
identification, assessment, mitigation, monitoring and reporting of operational risks.

The tools and techniques used for operational risk identification, assessment and monitoring covering internal loss data collection, analysis, control
and self-assessment aspects by each business unit and support [unction.

In addition, the Disaster Recovery and Business Continuity Plan enables the company to operate as a going concern and minimize losses in the event
of severe business disruption at the main site(s). These alternate arrangements are periodically reviewed and tested for any contingencies that may
arises due to an internal or external event leading to business disruption and / or failure.

Considering the pandemic of COVID-19, the global economy has been severely impacted and a lot more efforts will be required to control the impact
of the disease, and ensure aveidance of overall actual and potential financial losses around the globe. In this situation, Pakistan would be no
exception and will be exposed to such type of global crises. Consequently, all sectors of the economy will continue to show subdued activities which
will impact the banking sector as well; however, well placed alternative arrangements could be helpful in curtailing the negative impact on the

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential for loss to an institution arising from either its inability to meet its obligations or to finance its commitments as they fall
due without incurring unacceptable cost or losses. In addition, liquidity risk may be a result of a financial institution’s inability to unwind or offset
underlying risks [rom assets it currently holds or a situation, which will force the financial institution to sell its assets at a loss as the assets are
illiquid or the market is suffering a liquidity crunch.

The Company's approach towards liquidity risk management is to ensure as far as possible that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due. The Liquidily Management Policy is formulated keeping in view SBP's guidelines on risk management and Basel 111 principles
on sound liquidity management. The Company has also formulated Liquidity Risk Management policy as per SBP's guidelines. The Risk
Management Function uses difTerent tools for identifying, assessing, measuring and controlling liquidity risk and periodically reports to senior
management and risk management committees. The Company is also preparing leverage ratio report on quarterly basis for senior management, risk



66 PAK-LIBYA HOLDING COMPANY(PRIVATE) LIMITED

The management is responsible for managing liquidity profile of the Company although strategic management of liquidity has been delegated to
Asset & Liability Committee (ALCO). The ALCO of the Company deliberate and recommend liquidity strategy ensuring that appropriate policies
and procedures are in place to control and constrain liquidity risk. It is also responsible for ensuring that the Company has adequate information
systems for measuring, monitoring, controlling and reporting liquidity risk.

The Company has established a robust liquidity Risk Management framework, which ensures sufficient liquidity, including a cushion of
unencumbered, high quality liquid assets to withstand a range of stress events, including those involving the loss or impairment of both unsecured
and secured funding sources. The Company has clearly articulated liquidity risk tolerance level that is appropriate for business strategy and manage
liquidity risk within the risk tolerance limit while ensuring that the Company maintains sufficient liquidity. The liquidity management framework
provides the Board, Senior Management and other appropriate committees with timely information on the liquidity position of the Company, The
Company has also incorporated liquidity costs, benefits and risk in the internal pricing, performance measurement and new product approval process
for all significant business activities, thereby aligning the risk taking incentives of individual business lines with the liquidity exposures.

Pak-Libya has two available sources to raise funds for meeting the liquidity requirements to cater the business operations. These funding sources
comprises of primary market and secondary market. Under the primary market the corporate or non banking sources are taped whereas the secondary
market source is mainly the banks & financial institutions. Since Pak Libya may raise funds against Cols, so the reliance of raising funds through
Clean borrowing would be based on wholesale funds as well as retail deposits. In order to increase funding base, Pak Libya continues to explore
other funding sources including secured long term borrowings from Fls.

In order to assess liquidity levels for PLHC's needs, the Company uses different parameters that set minimum liquidity buffers for both asset-based
liquidity and total liquidity, Pak-Libya believes that in order to reduce liquidity risk, access to reliable funding sources with relatively low liquidity
risk is of high importance than volatile sources of fund. The distinction between reliable and volatile sourcesis based on prudent liquidity planning.
Apart from liability side, liquidity risk is also mitigated by maintaining the liquidity on the asset side of the balance sheet which mostly dependent on

unencumbered high quality liquid assets,

The Company conducts stress tests on a regular basis for a variety of short term and protracted institution-specific and market wide scenarios to
identify sources of potential liquidity strain and to ensure that current exposures should remain in accordance with the established liquidity risk

The Asset & Liability Commnittee is responsible for reviewing and monitoring of Liquidity Position in its meeting on regular basis and communicates
its views and recommendations to the respective front office(s) and Executive Commitlee. Besides, the liquidity aspects are also deliberated in the
meetings of Board’s/ Management’s Risk Management Committee (BRMC & MRMC) on regular basis.

The Company has well-defined Contingency Funding Plan in-place. The objective of the contingency plan is to ensure that when any of the indicators
or tools being monitored by ALCO enters into the warning or stress zone, corrective measures/plans would be in place. The monitoring of liquidity
position and funding strategies is an ongoing activity, but any change must be noted and reported with respect to unexpected events, economic or
market conditions, earnings problems or situations beyend its control causing either a short or long term funding crisis.

The Company’s LCR is mainly dependent on the availability of high quality unencumbered government securities along with short term REPOs and
clean borrowings to manage liquidity position of the company. Being DFI, the Company is largely dependent on short term as well as long-term
borrowing from financial institutions, which affects LCR position,
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474.1  Maturities of asseis and liabilities - based on contractual maturity of the assets and liabilities of the Company

2021
Over
Over1to7 Over7to14 Overlddays Overlto2 OverZto3 Over3to6 Over6to9 Over9 months Overlto2 Over2to3 Over3tos
Lol LR days days to 1 Month Months Months Months Months to L year years years Years e A
{Rupees in '000)
Assets
Cash and balances with treasury banks 110,575 79,641 - - 30,934 - - - - - Z - = 5
Balances with other banks 197,264 197,264 - - - - - - - = = 2 5 =
Lendings to financial institutions 3,800,000 - - 1,200,000 1,500,000 1,100,000 - - = & i -
Investments 27,211,914 = % 20 582,761 5,000 299,585 117,614 83,703 302,970 7,847,573 4,210,859 749,889 13,009,940
Advances 6,312,475 - 5,744 52,926 65,368 153,345 453,042 342,122 499,515 408,536 1,147,934 1,030,693 847,904 1,305,346
Cperating fixed assets 96,472 = = = 3,351 ] 6,634 9,870 - 13,881 17,832 11,277 12,902 20,745
Intangible assets 973 - - - - - - - - - - = 5 973
Deferred tax asset - net 434,796 - - - 15,602 - 47,983 3,878 . 7,756 24,995 113,712 24,995 195,875
Other assets 2,456,733 - = - 223,015 - 791,206 581,585 - 856,630 .- - - ) 4,298
’ 40,621,202 276,905 5744 52,946 2,121,011 158,345 3,098,450 2,155,069 585,218 1,589,773 9,058,334 5,366,541 1,635,690 14,537,177
Liabilities
Borrowings 30,149,418 - 22,201,796 - 557,975 50,000 237,594 1,112,161 150,000 1,157,898 3,097,044 1,349,620 178,263 57,067
Deposits and other accounts 4,576,353 - 143,750 54,602 1,878,722 96,194 1,781,987 621,098 - - - - - -
Other liabilities 320573 = z ) 76,878 = : 44,938 78515 T 20,002 = 2 22,557 77,683
35,046,344 - 22345546 54,602 2,513,575 146,194 2,064,519 1,811,774 150,000 1,177,900 3,097,044 1,349,620 200,820 134,750
5,574,858 276,905 (22,339,802) (1,656} {392,566) 12,151 1,033,931 343,295 435218 411,873 5,941,290 4,016,921 1,434,870 14,402,427
Share capital 8,141,780
Reserves 380,654
Deficit on revaluation of assets - net of tax (847,561)
Unappropriated/ Unremitted profit/ (Loss) (2,100,215)
Advance against share subscription -
5,574,858
2020
Over
Over1to7  Over7tol4 Overld4daysto Overlto2 Over2103 Over3to6 Over6t09 Over9menths Overlto2 Over2te3 Over3 to 5
Tl Lot -days days 1 Month Months Months Manths Months to | year years years Years Qyer 2 %S
(Rupees in '000)
Assets
Cash and balances with treasury banks 63,155 63,155 - - - - - - - - - - - -
Balances with other banks 82,159 82,159 - - - - - - - - - - = a
Lendings to financial instifutions 3,400,000 - 2 500,000 1,850,000 1,050,000 - - - - - =
Investments 24,912,515 - - - 609,842 - 252,238 137,332 - 68,868 627,131 277,691 8,814,825 14,124,588
Advances 5,674,009 15,625 2,501 4,622 67,338 31,417 232,753 458,282 479,000 . 738,76 1,075,372 858,542 1,092,506 616,774
Operating fixed assets 97,813 - - " 2,778 - 6,832 8,175 - 16,010 25,652 11,427 7258 . 19,631
Intangible assets 1,964 - - = - - - - - - 1,964 - - =
Deferred tax asset - net 189,306 - 2 - = . 63,825 3,878 - 8,025 16,774 16,774 (20,606) 100,636
Other assets g 2,589,540 - - - 81,638 - 713,550 63,418 - 1.234.088 246274 246,274 - 4,298
37,010,462 160,940 2,501 4,622 1,262,096 31,417 3,119,248 1,721,085 479,000 2,065,767 1,993,167 1,410,708 9,893,983 14,865,927
Liabilities
Borrowings 26,391,955 - 16,006,000 3,000,000 200,000 845,425 338,335 497,092 - 972,333 4,047,529 165,028 280,058 40,155
Deposits and other accounts 4,042,892 - 137,220 1,321,641 710,183 26,000 1,145,548 552,300 . 92,500 57,500 - - - -
Other liabilities 612,550 - - - 296,682 - 188,612 47.605 - 33,643 - 26,500 514 18,994
! 31,047,397 - 16,143,220 4,321,641 1,206,865 871,425 1,672,495 1,096.997 92,500 1.063,476 4,047,529 191,528 280,572 59,149
5,963,065 160,940 (16,140,719) (4.317.019) 55,232 (840,008) 1.446.753 624,088 386,500 1,002,251 (2,054,362) 1,219,180 9,613,411 14,806,778
Share capital 7,871,780
Reserves 372,477
Deficit on revaluation of assets - net of tax (281,624)
Unappropriated/ Unremitted profit/ {Loss) (2,134,569)
Advance against share subscription 135,000

5.963.065
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Maturities of assets and liabilities - based on expected maturity of the assets and liabilities of the Company

Assets

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Lendings to financial institutions
Investments

Advances

Operating fixed assels

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assel - net

Other assets

Liabilities

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts
Other liabilities

Share capital

Reserves

Deficit on revaluation of assets - nel of tax
Unappropriated/ Unremitted profit/ (Loss)
Advance against share subscription

Assets

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Lendings to financial institutions
Investments

Advances

Operating fixed assets

Intangible assets

Deferred tax asset - net

Other assels

Liabilities

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts
Other liabilities

Share capital

Reserves

Deficit on revaluation of assets - net of tax
Unappropriated/ Unremitted profit/ (Loss)
Advance against share subscription
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5.963.065

2021
Over
Total Upto 1 Over 1to Over 3 to 6 months to Over 1 to Over2 to Over3 to OverSto Above
meonth 3 months 6 months 1 year 2 years 3 years 5 years 10 years 10 years
(Rupees in '000)
110,575 110,575 - - = = - E z =
197,264 197,264 - - - - - - - -
3,800,000 1,200,000 1,500,000 1,100,000 - - - - 3 -
27,211,914 582,781 304,585 117,614 388,673 7,847,573 4,210,859 749,889 13,009,940 -
6,312,475 124,039 606,387 342,122 - 908,051 1,147,934 1,050,693 847,904 824,772 430,573
96,472 3331 6,634 9,870 13,881 17,832 11277 12,902 20,745 -
973 - - - - - - - 973 &
434,796 15,602 47,983 3,878 7,756 24,995 113,712 24,995 9,482 136,393
2.456,733 223,015 791,206 581,585 856,630 - - - 4298 -
40,621,202 2,456,606 3,256,795 2,155,069 2,174,991 9,038,334 5,366,541 1,635,690 13,870,210 666,966
30,149,418 22,759,771 287,594 1,112,161 1,307,398 3,097,044 1,349,620 178,263 57,067 -
4,576,353 2,077,074 1,878,181 621,098 - - - - - =
320,573 165879 44,933 78515 20,002 - - 22,557 77,682 -
35,046,344 24,913,724 2,210,715 1,811,774 1,327,500 3,097,044 1349620 200,820 134,749 -
5,574,858 (22,457,118) 1,046,082 343,295 847,091 5,941,290 4,016,921 1,434,870 13,735.461 666,966
8,141,780
380,654
(847,361)
(2,100,215)
5,574,858
2020
Over
Total Upto | Over 1 to Over3 to 6§ months to Over 110 Over2to Over3to Over5to Above
maonth 3 months 6 months 1 year 2 years 3 years 5 years 10 years 10 years
(Rupess in '000)
63,155 63,155 - - = - - - - -
82,159 82,159 - - - - - - - -
3,400,000 500,000 1,850,000 1,050,000 - - - - - &
24,912,515 609,841 252,239 137,332 68,868 627,131 277,691 8,814,825 14,124 588 -
5,674,009 90,587 263,397 459,055 1,217,776 1,075372 858,542 1,092,506 592,400 24374
97,813 2,778 6,882 8,175 16.010 25652 11,427 7,258 12,482 7,149
1,964 - - - - 1,964 - - - -
189,306 - 63,825 3,878 1.757 16774 16,774 (20,338) - 100,636
2.589.541 81,640 713.550 63.418 1.234.088 246.274 246.274 - 4.297 -
37,010,462 1,430,160 3,149,893 1,721,858 2,544.499 1,993,167 1,410,708 9,394,251 14,733,767 132,159
26,391,955 19,206,000 1,183,760 497,092 972,333 4,047,529 165,028 280,058 40,155 -
4,042,892 2,169,044 1,171,548 552,300 150,000 - - - - -
612.550 296,681 188.612 47.605 33.643 - 26,500 514 - 18,995
31,047,397 21,671,725 2,543,920 1,096,997 1,155.976 4.047.529 191,528 280.572 40,155 18,995
5.963.065 (20,241,565) 605,973 624,861 1,388,523 (2.054.362) 1.219.180 9.613.679 14.693.612 113,164
7,871,780
372,477
(281,624)
(2,134,569)
135,000
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CUSTOMER SATISFACTION AND FAIR TREATMENT

The management through complaint handling mechanism, ensures that complaints are resolved in a timely manner and recurrence of complaints is
prevented where possible. Customers have the option of registering their complaints at our office, Company's website and through email.
Complaint management process is kept as transparent as possible through registration, acknowledgement, interim response where applicable,
resolution and root cause analysis of recurring complaints. Custemers are also given the option of contacting the Banking Mohtasib office in case

they are dissatisfied with the response received from the Company. During the year, one complaint was received directly by Pak-Libya and the
time taken to resolve the complaint was three working days.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE

There is no event subsequent to the statement of financial position date that requires disclosure in these financial statements,

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on l 0 M i RDK?«by the Board of Directors of the Company.

GENERAL

51.1 In its latest rating announcement (June 2021), the Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited {PACRA) has maintained the Company's rating
of AA-(Double A Minus) in the long term and Al+ (A One Plus) in the short term with Stable outlock assigned to ratings.

51.2 Amounts in these financial statements have been rounded ofT to the nearest thousand rupee, unless otherwise stated.

51.3 Certain comparative figures have been rounded off and reclassified in order to present information on a basis consistent with current year.

Ak

Chief F]/":Kc:‘l Officer Managing Director & CEO

~
@ . g
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Director



STATEMENT SHOWING WRITTEN- OFF LOANS CR ANY OTHER FINANCIAL RELIEF OF

FIVE HUNDERED THOUSAND RS. OR ABOVE, PROVIDED DURING THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Annexure - |
31 December 2021 (Rupeus in '000)
- OUTSTANDING LIABILITIES AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR Principal Eatritt Other financial
NAME OF INDIVIDUALS / Mathm
S.Na | NAME & ADDRESS OF THE BORROWERS Ly CNIC NUMBER FATHER'STHUSBAND'S NAME
3 Interast/ Other than Interest/ " .
Principal e Pl Total writienoff | writien-sffwaived | relief provided Total
cup rkeup
T [DHA COGENLTD. MUHAMMAD SERAJ UL FAQ 5440007348355 |MUBAMMAD IZHAR UL HAQ 301,155 1851 745983 1518969 FTINTS iast 7598 1500027
D-35, BLOCK-5, CLIFTON, KARACHI COLRETD.) MANSOOR AHMAD 35204-1635432.5  |MUHAMMAD USMAN
TAYYABA RASHEED 4230109864804 |ABDUL RASHEED
MANSOOR M. KHAN 4230145434513 |MASOOD A KHAN
FAREED VARDAG 4200005041289 |UAZA KHAN
KHALID MOHSAIN SHAIKH 51101-01426519 | M. MOSHIN SHATKH
SAEED IQBAL 4220119926569 |ZAFAR IQBAL SIDDIQI
BILAL ASGHAR 423015741517-8 | SHEIKH MUHAMMAD ASGHAR
Tot] EIRES Tiast 745953 1518959 282005 71851 745983 1300027




STATEMENT SHOWING WRITTEN- OFF LOANS OR ANY OTHER FINANCIAL RELIEF OF

Annexure - [
FIVE HUNDERED THOUSAND RS. OR ABOVE, PRGVIDED DURING THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
31 December 2020 (Rupees in '000)
OUTSTANDING LIABILITIES AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR Principal Biterers) Other financial
-un
NAME OF INDIVIDUALS / Ik
NAME & ADDRESS OF THE BORROWERS C NUMBER FATHER'S/HUSBAND'S NAME
L o RO PARTNERS/ DIRECTORS e — Interest | Other than Interest| o : written-of ! S
Mark-up Mark-up el wadved relief provide:
T [Zulbqe AT 42201-5946845-1 | Younus Al 3284 8990 12223 = 92 = o2z
House No. D-321/5, Khudadad Colony, New
Town,Karachi
Toat] 33 3940 228 922 2 253
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Annexure - II
ISLAMIC BANKING B NESS

The Company, being a conventional financial institution / DFI, does not have any Islamic banking operation / activities.





